BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

February 8, 2018

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Black Oak Mine Unified School District will provide a safe learning environment that challenges all students
to achieve academic, excellence, develop their creative potential, and acquire marketable, career, technical,
and personal skills.

Superintendent
Jeremy Meyers

Board of Trustees
Bill Drescher
Joe Scroggins
Darcy Knight

Jeff Burch
Ronnie Ebitson







BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
6540 WENTWORTH SPRINGS ROAD
GEORGETOWN, CALIFORNIA

Black Oak Mine Unified School District will provide a safe learning environment that
challenges all students to achieve academic excellence, develop their creative potential, and

acquire marketable, career, technical, and personal skills.

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

DATE: February 8, 2018
TIME: 4:45 p.m. (Closed)
7:00 p.m. (Open)
LOCATION: 6540 Wentworth Springs Road

Georgetown, CA

Visitors are always welcome at meetings of the Board of Trustees and their suggestions and comments are
encouraged. Those wishing to address the Board may do so when the item on the agenda is taken up, prior
to action being taken by the Board, or under "Communications". Pursuant to Board Bylaw 9323, at the time
of Oral Communications, the Board President will enforce a three minute time limit and will advise the
public. With Board consent, the President may increase or decrease the time allowed for public
presentation, depending on the topic and the number of persons wishing to be heard. The President may
take a poll of speakers for or against a particular issue and may ask that additional persons speak only if
they have something new to add. The agenda packet for this public meeting, as well as agenda documents
distributed less than 72 hours prior to this meeting, are available for review at the Black Oak Mine Unified
School District Office at the above address. If you are an individual with a disability and need an
accommodation, please contact the District Office at 333-8300 at least 48 hours in advance. The Board
meetings are taped by the District Office and the tape recordings are destroyed after 30 days. Black Oak
Mine Unified School District adheres to the Americans with Disabilities Act. Should you require special
accommodations, or more information about accessibility, please contact the Superintendent, (530)333-8300.
All efforts will be made for reasonable accommodations.

1.0 CALL TO ORDER - OPEN SESSION - 4:45 P.M.
2.0 PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA

3.0 CLOSED SESSION TOPICS

The Board of Trustees will review matters pertaining to the following topics as necessary and will

announce in public prior to going into Closed Session which topics will be considered in that

Closed Session.

31 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #005-18

32 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #003-18

33 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #009-18

3.4 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #001-18

35 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #002-18

3.6 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #010-18

3.7 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #006-18

38 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #007-18

3.9 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #004-18

310 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #008-18

311 Interdistrict Appeal Hearing-Student #011-18

3.12  Letters of Resignation- 3 - 1.0 FTE Custodian I

313  Public Employee Employment- 2 - 1.0 FTE Custodian I, 1 - .5 FTE Custodian I,
and 1 - .18 FTE Mental Health Specialist

314  Conference with Superintendent Jeremy Meyers, Personnel Services Coordinator
Shelly King, and District Labor Negotiator regarding Labor Negotiations, the
Black Oak Mine Teachers Association, the California School



4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

Employees Association, Gold Chain Chapter #660, Classified Management,
Confidential employees, and Administrative employees.
315  Superintendents Evaluation

OPEN SESSION - 7:00 P.M.
The Board of Trustees will reconvene in open session.

DISCLOSURE OF ACTION TAKEN, IF ANY, IN CLOSED SESSION
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

The Board may act upon an item of business not appearing on the posted agenda if, first,

the Board publicly identifies the item, and second, one of the following occurs:

7.1 The Board, by majority vote of the full Board, decides that an emergency exists,
as defined in Govt. Code Section 54956.5;

7.2 Upon a decision by a 2/3 vote of the Board members present at the meeting, or if
less than 2/3 of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote of those
present decides, that there is a need to act immediately and that the need to take
action came to the District’s attention after the agenda was posted; or

7.3 the item was on the agenda of a prior meeting of the Board occurring not more
than five calendar days prior to the date of this meeting, and at the prior meeting
the item was continued to this meeting.

M =) AY

COMMUNICATIONS - 7:10 P.M.

8.1 Public Hearing - Tentative Agreement By and Between The Black Oak Mine
Unified School District and The Black Oak Mine Teachers Association for the
2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19 school years (Page 1)

8.2 Public Hearing - AB 1200 Disclosure for the Agreement By and Between The
Black Oak Mine Unified School District and The Black Oak Mine Teachers
Association for the 2016-17, 2017-18, 2018-19 school years (Page 2)

8.3 Public Hearing - Tentative Agreement with Black Oak Mine Unified School
District and Black Oak Mine Confidential, Classified Management, Mental
Health Therapist, and Administrative Employees for the 2016-17, 2017-18, &
2018-19 school years (Page 3)

8.4 Public Hearing - AB 1200 Disclosure for the Agreement with Black Oak Mine
Unified School District and Black Oak Mine Confidential, Classified
Management, Mental Health Therapist, and Administrative Employees for the
2016-17, 2017-18, & 2018-19 school years (Page 4)

8.5 Public Hearing - Initial Collective Bargaining Proposal of Black Oak Mine
Unified School District with the California School Employees Association, Gold
Chain Chapter #660 for the 2017-18 School Year (Page 5)

8.6 Written Communications

8.7 Oral Communications - Members of the public may address the Board on any items of
interest to the public that are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board, but are
not on the agenda or are on the consent agenda. Each person who addresses the Board
must first be recognized by the presiding officer and then give his/her name. Comments
must be directed to the Board as a whole and not to individual members or District
employees. Individual speakers will be allowed three (3) minutes to address the Board.
However, the Board shall not act upon, respond to, or comment on the merits of any item
presented during the Oral Communications, although the Board may ask clarifying
questions of the presenter or refer the presenter to a District procedure if appropriate.
(Government Code Sections 54954.2 and 54954.3) This is also the time to address any
items on the consent agenda.

EXCELLENCE IN EDUCATION - 7:20 P.M.



10.0

11.0

12.0

13.0

14.0

15.0

16.0

17.0

18.0

B.O.M.T.A. REPORT - 7:25 P.M.

C.S.E.A. REPORT - 7:30 P.M.

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BOARD REPORT - 7:35 P.M.

FMOTC REPORT- 7:40 P.M.

CBO REPORT- 7:45 P.M.

SITE ADMINISTRATORS REPORT- 7:55 P.M.

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT - 8:05 P.M.

INFORMATION & DISCUSSION - 8:10 P.M.

17.1

17.2

18.1

Results of El Dorado County Office of Education 2016-17 First Interim Review
(Pages 7-11)

EXPLANATION: The results of El Dorado County Office of Education 2016-17
First Interim Review will be shared with the Board of Trustees.

Initial Collective Bargaining Proposal of Black Oak Mine Union School District
with the California School Employee Association, Gold Chain Chapter #660
(Pages 13-14)

EXPLANATION: As required by Government Code Section 3547 prior to
engaging in collective bargaining, initial proposals of both the employee
organizations and the District must be made public. As well, it is required that
the public have an opportunity to express itself regarding the proposals.

NEW BUSINESS - 8:15 P.M.
Local Education Agency Plan (LEAP) Annual Review/Update (Pages 15-50)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider
taking action to approve the LEAP Annual Review/Update.
S A%

18.2

18.3

Tentative Agreement By and Between The Black Oak Mine Unified School
District and the Black Oak Mine Teacher Association for the 2016-17, 2017-18, &
2018-19 school years including AB 1200 Disclosure(Pages 51-59)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve
the Agreement between The Black Oak Mine Unified School District and the
Black Oak Mine Teachers Association and the AB 1200 Disclosure.

S \Y

Tentative Agreement between the Black Oak Mine Unified School District and
the Black Oak Mine Confidential, Classified Management, Mental Health
Therapist, and Administrative Employees for the 2016-17, 2017-18, & 2018-19
school years and the AB 1200 Disclosure (Pages 61-71)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve
the Agreement between the Black Oak Mine Unified School District and the
Black Oak Mine Confidential, Classified Management, Mental Health Therapist,




and Administrative Employees and the AB 1200 Disclosure.
M S \'%

18.4 Board Resolution #2018-04 Reduction in Certificated Staff Due to
Reduction/Elimination in Particular Kinds of Service (Pages 73-75)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider
adopting Board Resolution #2018-04 Reduction in Certificated Staff Due to
Reduction/Elimination in Particular Kinds of Service.

M S A%

18.5  El Dorado County School Board Association Annual Awards Dinner (Page 77)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider
nominating candidates in one or all of the four categories for the El Dorado

County School Board Association Awards Dinner.
M 5 A%

18.6  E-Rate Bid Proposal (Pages 79-87)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider
approving the E-Rate Bid Proposal.
M S A%

19.0 CONSENT AGENDA - 8:35 P.M,

M S \Y%

191  Teacher Appreciation Day (Pages 89-90)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider
taking action to adopt Board Resolution #2018-01 Teacher Appreciation Day,
May 8, 2018.

19.2  Day of the School Nurse (Pages 91-92)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees adopt
Board Resolution #2018-02 Day of the School Nurse, May 8, 2018.

19.3  Classified School Employee Week (Pages 93-94)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees adopt
Board Resolution #2018-03 Classified School Employee Week, May 14-18, 2018.

19.4  Consolidated Application (ConApp) (Pages 95-107)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider
approving the updated 2017-18 Consolidated Application for Funding

19.5  Second Reading and Adoption of CSBA Updated/Revised Board Policies (Pages
109-128)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider
adopting the CSBA updated/revised Board Policies.




20.0

21.0

22.0

23.0

19.6

19.7

19.8

19.9

19.10

Minutes - January 11, 2018 (Pages 129-131)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve

the minutes from the regular Board Meeting on January 11, 2018.
Minutes - January 25, 2018 (Page 133)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve
the minutes from the Special Board Meeting on January 25, 2018.

Purchase Orders, Warrants, Bids and Quotes (Page 135)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that 2017-18 fiscal year Batch
numbers 8044-8051 dated January 4, 2018 to January 29, 2018 for General Fund,
Charter School Fund, Cafeteria Fund, Building Fund, and School Facilities Fund,
for a total of $529,933.56, be approved.

Gifts (Pages 137-141)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees accept the
gift donated.

Field Trip (Pages 143-144)

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve
the overnight Field Trip request.

REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES - 8:40 P.M.

FUTURE MEETINGS

Special meeting of the Board: Board Retreat - February 22, 2018 6:00 PM

The next regular meeting of the Board is scheduled for Thursday, March 8, 2018 at DO
The next special meeting of the Board is scheduled for Thursday, March 22, 2018 at ARCS

CLOSED SESSION
The Board will continue review of matters specified under agenda item 3.0 as required.

ADJOURNMENT






BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING
ON

BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT WITH
BLACK OAK MINE TEACHERS ASSOCIATION
FOR THE 2016-17, 2017-18, AND 2018-19 SCHOOL
YEARS

February 8, 2018
7:00 P.M.
DISTRICT OFFICE - BOARD ROOM
6540 WENTWORTH SPRINGS ROAD, GEORGETOWN, CA 95634



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING
ON

AB 1200 DISCLOSURE FOR THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL
DISTRICT AND THE BLACL OAK MINE
TEACHERS ASSOCIATION FOR THE 2016-17, 2017-
18, AND 2018-19 SCHOOL YEARS

February 8, 2018
7:00 P.M.
DISTRICT OFFICE — BOARD ROOM
6540 WENTWORTH SPRINGS ROAD, GEORGETOWN, CA 95634



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING
ON

BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TENTATIVE AGREEMENT WITH
BLACK OAK MINE CONFIDENTIAL, CLASSIFIED
MANAGEMENT, MENTAL HEALTH THERAPIST
AND, ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES FOR THE
2016-17,2017-18, AND
2018-19 SCHOOL YEARS

February 8,2018
7:00 P.M.
DISTRICT OFFICE — BOARD ROOM
6540 WENTWORTH SPRINGS ROAD, GEORGETOWN, CA 95634

3



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING
ON

AB 1200 DISCLOSURE FOR THE AGREEMENT
BETWEEN BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL
DISTRICT AND THE BLACL OAK MINE
CONFIDENTIAL, CLASSIFIED MANAGEMENT,
MENTAL HEALTH THERAPIST, AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EMPLOYEES FOR THE 2016-
17,2017-18, AND 2018-19 SCHOOL YEARS

February 8, 2018
7:00 P.M.
DISTRICT OFFICE — BOARD ROOM
6540 WENTWORTH SPRINGS ROAD, GEORGETOWN, CA 95634

4



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

PUBLIC HEARING

THE INITIAL COLLECTIVE BARGAINING
PROPOSAL OF
BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
WITH CALIFORNIA SCHOOL EMPLOYEES
ASSOCIATION FOR 2017-18

February 8, 2018
7:00 P.M.
DISTRICT OFFICE - BOARD ROOM
6540 WENTWORTH SPRINGS ROAD, GEORGETOWN, CA 95634






BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 17.1

MEETING DATE:

FROM:

EXPLANATION:

BACKGROUND:

Results of El Dorado County Office of Education 2017-18
First Interim Review

February 8, 2013

Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
Tricia Kowalski, Chief Business Official

The results of El Dorado County Office of Education 2017-18 First
Interim Review will be shared with the Board of Trustees.

In compliance with the provisions of Education Code Section
42130 et seq., the El Dorado County Office of Education has
completed its review of our District’s 2017-18 First Interim budget
which was approved by the Board of Trustees at the December 14,
2017 Board Meeting. This review covers the 2017-18 First Interim
budget as well as the projections for 2018-19 and 2019-20. The
County Office is required to issue a letter to the Governing Board
by January 15, 2018, that indicates agreement (or disagreement)
with the District’s finding of positive, qualified or negative
budget.

km/board/2-8-18/ EDCOE Results First Interim Budget



T

|

G 1 e T AL I ST PR T E 24l T ;
t)\r J Ed Manansala. Ed.D.. County Superintendent of Scheols

& Lﬁsﬁ»ﬁ%, o

EL DORADD COUNTY
OFFICE OF EDUCATION

8767 Green Valley Road, Placerville, California 95667 | 530-8622-7130

January 12, 2018

Bill Drgsher, School Board President
Black Oak Mine Unified School District
1378 Hamblen Way

Cool, CA 95614

Dear Bill Drescher:

In compliance with the provisions of Education Code Section 42130 et seq,, our office has completed its
“AB 1200 Review” of the 2017-18 First Interim budget adopted by the board in December of 2017. Per
E.C. 42131, the district governing board certifies whether or not the district is able to meet its financial
obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year (2017 18) and two subsequent years (2018-19 &. 2019-20)

The County Office Is required to issue a letter to the governing board by Jarvary 16,2018 that indicates
our agreement (or disagreement) with the gaverning board's finding of positive, gualified or negative.
Our office has reviewed the data submltted including the criteria and standards for your district, and
concurs with the qua!f_ﬁed r:errfﬂcaﬁan ﬁndmg approved by the district governing board.

7A positive certification means the dJstrlct is able to meet its financial obligations for the remainder
of the school year and subsequent two years. A qualified certification means the district may not be
able to meet its flnanclol obligations for the current year or two subsequent fiscal yeors. A negative
certa‘!cat:on means the district will not be able to meet its financiol obilgations for the remalnder of
the current yeor or the subsequeént year.” (E.C. 42131)

Although the economy has improved quickly over the last few years, both the Governor and the
Department of Finance continue to remind school districts that an economic downiturn is inevitable and
would negatively affect school funding. Special attention should be paid to multi-year projections and the
contributing factors both within and outside the control of district decision makers. As districts build their
multi-year projections it is important to recognize that funding increases are expected to be limited as
target funding approaches; employer contributions to retirement benefits are scheduled to rise; and
requirements to improve academic performance increase.

We understand that the LCFF, LCAP, and accountability system that comes with the funding model have
farced many districts to rethink their appraach to planning and to allocating resources to align with state
and local priorities. We appreciate the hoard’s dasire and intent to provide a quality education for its

students.

2017-13 First Interiim Review

The County Office has reviewed the data submitted and performed additional testing of the data as we
deemed necessary. This review covers the 2017-18 First Interim budget, as well as the projections for
2018-19 and 2019-20. We have provided any technical comments relative to the report to your district’s
chief fiscal officer. Based upon our review, we highlight the following items:

8

\oLe r[- -



Local Control Funding

With the LCFF formula, the district is funded at its historical base, adjusted for average daily
attendance {ADA) changes, plus a portion of the difference between the historical level and the
LCFF target. This means at first interim the district is funded at 2% below its LCFF target. This gap

between the funded and target LCFF is about $250,000.

Full implementation of the LCFF is anticipated to be complete by 2020-21. While the annual LCFF
gap-closure percentage estimates may seem large, the remaining gap to fill has shrunk significantly.
For school districts this means that gap-closure percentages may increase, yet result in 8 smaller
actual funding increase.

Current Year Deficit Spending

The 2017-18 First Interim budget shows the district’s income/expenditure variance (adjusted for
ong-time income and expend:tures) is approximately $154 000 which means the dlstrict is spending
$154,000 more than current year income,

Negotlatlons

The 2017-18 First iriterim budget reflects the status of negotiations as follows:
Certificated Unsettled
Classlifled Unsettled

At the time of the 2017-18 First Interim budget was adopted, salary negotiations for both
certificated and classified were unsettled for the 2016-17 and 2017-18 school years. According to
information provided in the First Interim budget, these potential increases have not been included
in the budgeted salary and benefit expenditures.

Enrollment / ADA (Average Daily Attendance)

The District experienced declining enrollment in the past few years. Based on a comparison of
CBEDS data, in 2017-18 the district experienced a loss of 30 students. Enrollment losses for the next
two years are projected at 33 for 2018-19 and flat for 2019-20. This decline in enrollment will lead
to lower revenues from sources that are based on enroliment and average daily attendance (ADA).
As 3 declining enrollment district, revenues fall more quickly than expenditures and long-term
structural solutlons are necessary to bring expenditures in alignment with revenues.

The district is funded in 2017-18 based on 2016-17 ADA, a loss of approximately $267,000. The
district is projecting a loss of over 23 ADA in 2017-18, which will result in over $167,000 loss in LCFF
funding in 2017-18. The district should continue to monitor enrollment projections and adjust
staffing and other expenditures accordingly.

Reserve Levels
The district has an economic uncertainty reserve of 5%. The required reserve level for the district is

4%, We recognize that the district maintains additional reserves beyond the minimum.

Cash Flow
The general fund cash flow submitted with the 2017-18 First Interim Report projects that the district

will end the budget year with a positive cash balance.



Administration Transition

Leadership stability is considered a key fiscal indicator in measuring the financial solvency of
districts, while leadership instability is one of the primary FCMAT predictors of school agencies
needing intervention. The Fiscal Crisis & Management Assistance Team’s {FCMAT) Fiscal Health Risk
Analysis indicates that a district that has a superintendent and/or a chief fiscal officer that has been
with the district less than two years, combined with other key fiscal indicators, may increase the

risk of the district’s fiscal health,

Within the past few years the district has experienced administration changes that are beginning to
stabilize. Four of the five district administrators have been in office for at least two years, including
both the Superintendent and Chief Business Official.

Multiyear Projections
The district’s multiyear projection refiects -assumptions that target LCFF levels will increase by 2.15%
in 2018-19 and 2.35% in 2019-20, with district funding at 1% below its LCFF target in 2018-19 and

1% helow target in 2019-20.

As CalSTRS and CalPERS employer rates cantlnue to rise; itis important for districts to. recognize the
impact 6f these increased ratas {as listed In the tables below) In their multiyear projectionis. The
district’s multiyear includes both the CalSTRS and CalPERS employer rate increases, which are
estimated at $155,000 in 2018-19 and . $155,000 in 2019-20,

Al fT.Rb Projected
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2015-20 2000-21 | 202122
Emplover Rate| 8:25% 2.88% 10.73% 12.58% | 13.443% | 16.24% 1813% | 19.10% 18.50%
Incremsse from Prior Yea 0.630% 1.850% 1.850% 1.863% 1.837% 1850% 0.970% 0.3005%

_ ] Projected
A‘ C_ﬂ 1 P E RS 2015-14 2014-15 2MmS-16 201817 201718 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Employer Rate| 11.442% | 101770% | 11847% | 13.888% | 15531% | 183100% | 2080% 23.800% | 25.200%

Increase irom Prioe Year 0.329% 0.076% 2031% 1.643% 2.569%¢ 2.700% 3.000% 1.400%

The district’s multivear projection indicates insufficient amounts to meet minimum reserve
requirements. The district must implement reductions of ($551,000) in cuts for 2018-19 and an
additional i$579,000) in cuts for 2019-20 in order to meet their district minimum reserve
requirements in 2018-19. The magnitude of these amounts represents necessary spending
reductions of 10% across two years given the current level of projected revenues.

The multiyear projection indicates the 2019-20 ending fund balance will have dropped 97% over a
two-year period.

Summary Statement

Itis always a delicate balance of maintaining financial responsibility while providing for the education of
students.  If is therefore critical to recognize that the district projects deficit spending, is experiencing
declining enrollment and needs to implement significant projected reductions in order to malntain
reserve levels., We understand the board will be carefully monitoring the budget in the current and future
fiscal years and will make reductions as necessary to ensure the ongoing fiscal solvency of the district.

10



We appreciate the efforts of the board and district administration as they strive to develop and maintain
balanced budgets. We look forwatd to our continued partnership as we navigate the transition and
implementation of the new funding model. Please do not hesitate to contact our office if we can be of
assistance and support.

Sincerely,

Dr. Ed Manansala/ County Supérintendent of Schools
El Dorado County Office of Education

cc Jéremy Mevyers, District Superintendent
Tricia Kowalski, Chief Business Officer
Robbie Montalbane, EDCOE Deputy Superintendent, Administrative Services
Roslynne Manansala-Smith, EDCOE Director, External Business '

11



12



AGENDA ITEM:

MEETING DATE:

FROM:

EXPLANATION:

BACKGROUND:

BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

17.2

Initial Collective Bargaining Proposal of Black Oak Mine Unified
School District with the California School Employees
Association, Gold Chain Chapter #660 for the 2017-18

February 8, 2018

Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
Shelly King, Personnel Services Coordinator

As required by Government Code Section 3547 prior to engaging
in collective bargaining, initial proposals of both the employee
organizations and the District must be made public. As well, it
is required that the public have an opportunity to express itself
regarding the proposals.

Government Code Section 3547 provides that:

1. All initial proposals must be presented at a public
meeting of the school employer and thereafter constitute
public record;

2. Meeting and negotiating shall not take place until:

(a) A reasonable time has elapsed after submission
of the proposal to enable the public to become
informed; and,

(b) The public has an opportunity to express itself
regarding the proposal at a meeting of the
public school employer.

3. After the public has had an opportunity to express itself,
the public school employer shall, at a meeting which is
open to the public, adopt its initial proposal.

4. New subjects of meeting and negotiating arising after
the presentation of initial proposals shall be made public
within 24 hours. Moreover, if a vote is taken on such
subject by the District, the vote of each voting Board
member is also required to be made public within 24
hours.

It should also be noted that before the District may enter into a

written agreement with the employee organization, major

provisions of the agreement including, but not limited to the cost
that would be incurred, must be disclosed at a public meeting.

(Legal references: Government Code Sections 3547; 3547.5)

There is no requirement that the Board take action of any sort
regarding the initial proposal. Itis simply an informational item.

km/ board/ 2-8-2018/ Initial Collective Bargaining Proposal from BOMUSD wi th CSEA
13



Black Oak Mine Unified School District

Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent

6540 Wentworth Springs Road, Georgetown, California 95634
530-333-8300 (office) ¢ 530-333-8303 (fax)
www.bomusd.org ¢ info@bomusd.org

Initial Proposal for a Successor Agreement
from the Black Oak Mine Unified School District
to the California School Employees Association
(CSEA), Local No. 660

The Black Oak Mine Unified School District looks forward to collaborative, objective, and
reality-based negotiations with CSEA Local No. 660 (CSEA) as we prepare to meet the
significant fiscal challenges facing our District.

The District will present proposals regarding the following for the 2017-18 school year:
e Article X - Compensation and Benefits: The District is interested in public funds

appropriately being put into salaries
e Article XVIII - Classification, Reclassification, Abolition of Positions:

14



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 18.1 Local Education Agency Plan (LEAP) Annual Review/Update
MEETING DATE: February 8, 2018
FROM: Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider taking
action to approve the Local Education Agency Plan Annual
Review/Update.

BACKGROUND: The No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Act of 2001 mandates local
education agencies to develop a Local Education Agency Plan (LEAP)
as a requirement for receiving federal funding. The plan describes
the actions Districts will take to ensure that programmatic
requirements are met. The LEAP is a single, coordinated, and
comprehensive plan describing services for all students. The LEAP
was intended as a five-year plan, operational from July 1, 2003
through June 30, 2008; it must, however, be annually reviewed and
updated with consultation of local advisory groups, including school
site councils and the District Advisory Council. Since NCLB has not
yet been reauthorized, we are continuing to annually update our
LEAP at least until that authorization takes place and we are given
new requirements.

km/board/2-8-18/LEAPlan

15



California Department of Education

School and District Accountability Division (CDE use only)

l Application # |

No Child Left Behind Act of 2001
SINGLE SCHOOL DISTRICT PLAN

To meet the requirements of the Local Educational Agency Plan

Mail original* and two copies to: California Department of Education
School and District Accountability Division 1430 N
Street, Suite 6208
Sacramento, California 95814-5901

(*subsequent amendments are approved by local board and kept on file; do not submit to CDE)

|SSD Plan Information:

Name of Local Educational Agency (LEA): Black Oak Mine Unified School District
County/District Code:

Dates of Plan Duration {should be five-year plan): January 25, 2018 —June 30, 2023
Date of Local Governing Board Approval: February 8,2018

District Superintendent: Jeremy Meyers

Address: 6540 Wentworth Springs Road

City: Georgetown Zip code: 95634

Phone: 530-333-8300 Fax: 530-333-8303

Signatures (Signatures must be original. Please use blueink.)

The superintendent and governing board of the LEA submitting the application sign on behalf of all
participants included in the preparation of the plan.

Jeremy Meyers
Printed or typed name of Superintendent Date Signature of Superintendent

William Drescher
Printed or typed name of Board President Date Signature of Board President

1

16



Table of Contents

Federal and State Programs Checklist..............ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiini e 3
District Budget for Federal Programs ...........ccccoioioiiiiiiiini it it 4
District Budget for State Programs ...........ccccoviiiiiiiiiiimiiini s 5
Part I: Descriptions — District Planning ... 6
MiISSION SLAtEMENE .....cooov i iR ST T0 T8 aseaT o R SRR EEH O RS TS sain e L FA RN bSa s s e nee anneeees 6
[ oY {1 =T SRS PTO RS S ST OT I PPP 6
DataDriven Reform/Fiscal Conditions/Special Programs...........cccccceiviriiremiieiiieniiniieeee e 7
BOMUSD Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) ........coocoiiiiiimr i 8
Parent Involvement and ENgagement ...........ccovvemieiiiiioiiiniciiiiiiinii et 8
Local Measures of Student Performance ..........ccccviiiiiiiiiiiin e 9
Part Il: Needs ASSESSMENT.......ccooiiiiii ettt s et rr e s e s s ee s st a e e nb e 10
Part lll: Assurances and Attachments ... 19
GENETAl ASSUTANCES ..vvveeeeeeeeieireetiereessaeassaeesssssarsbssaeaesasasamade ses e ab s as s s a2 ek b b bebe s ebbe e neraaneneenns 19
THIE L, PAM A e vaer e e oo G G S A R SRR RA VST v s e w e 21
Title |, Part D - SUDPAIE 2 ... ciiiisisiss s et sstes s e sssses s e e s s ses s ane s bes s e s e 23
THIE II, PAIE A oot e et et erer et ee et e s bt s e st e e g e e e es bbb s e S s e s e sa b s b e s es saaa e s s anbe e e nasbnees 23
TRIE I, PAT D ...oeoeoeicereens e et e s epepariesntasesasnms tossasmpssne nynsesn st nn RO S AV T G « e n e oo e o e 25
B L= L e e P R U Yy PO R 27
THIE IV, PAIE Ao e e e e G R T R R N AN A T 1 0 et 27
Title IV, Part A, SUDPAME 3....... ... iissibimsiisisimians s s ssse s asss s Sasesiasass e nnsesonoe 28
THIE V, Part A oottt et e oo ettt n e e s ab e s e s bbb ne s 29
NEW LEAP ASSUIAMCES ....uvuveveieeeieeieieeoeeiie et eeite st e e e e saeaeae s e s s s s sbasbasss e s ssbae s s e s e s e aenneeaesees 29
(@17 1) OO S b 0 ey oyt SRR 30
SIONALUTE PAGE ... oo e oRbaa GRS S S SV S 1o o0 31
APPEONAIX A ..ot s s e R S SRS SR a4 S S S OSSN SRS e neens 32
APPENAIX B ... e RRE S S PSS S SIS S SRS s 4o e e e 35

17



FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAMS CHECKLIST

Check () all applicable programs operated by the LEA. In the “other” category, list any

additional programs that are reflected in this Plan.

Federal Programs

State Programs

LI'itle |, Part A

Economic Impact Aid (EIA) — State
Compensatory Education

Title I, Part B, Even Start

EIA — Limited English Proficient

Title I, Part C, Migrant Education

After-School Education and Safety Programs

Title I, Part D, Neglected/Delinquent

School and Library Improvement Block Grant

Title 11, Part A, Subpart 2, Improving Teacher
Quality

Child Development Programs

Title Il, Part D, Enhancing Education Through
Technology

Educational Equity

Title 11, Limited English Proficient

Gifted and Talented Education

Title lll, Immigrants

High Priority Schools Grant Program

Title IV, Part A, Safe and Drug-Free Schools
and Communities

Tobacco Use Prevention Education (Prop 99)

Title V, Part A, Innovative Programs —
Parental Choice

Immediate Intervention/ Under performing
Schools Program

Adult Education

School Safety and Violence Prevention Act
(AB1113, AB 658)

Career Technical Education

Healthy Start

McKinney-Vento Homeless Education

Dropout Prevention and Recovery Act:
School Based Pupil Motivation and
Maintenance Program (SB 65)

Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

English Language Acquisition Program

219" Century Community Learning Centers

Community Based English Tutoring

Other (describe):

Art/Music Block Grant

Other (describe): School Gardens
Other (describe); Other (describe):
Other (describe): Other (describe):

18




DISTRICT BUDGET FOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS

Please complete the following table with information for your district.

Prior Year Current Year Current Year Current Year
Programs District District Direct Services | Direct Services
Carryovers Entitlements to Students to Students
at School at School
Sites (%) Sites (%)
Title |, Part A

Title |, Part B, Even Start

Title I, Part C, Migrant Education

Title 1, Part D,
Nedglected/Delinquent

Title Il Part A, Subpart 2,
Improving Teacher Quality

Title 11, Part D, Enhancing
Education Through Technology

Title lI, Limited English Proficient

Title [!l, Immigrants

Title IV, Part A, Safe and Drug
free Schools and Communities

Title V, Part A, Innovative
Programs
— Parental Choice

Adult Education

Career Technical Education

McKinney-Vento
Homeless Education

IDEA, Special Education

21% Century Community
Learning Centers

Other (describe)

TOTAL

19




DISTRICT BUDGET FOR STATE PROGRAMS

Please complete the following table with information for your district.

Programs

Prior Year
District
Carryovers

Current Year
District
Entitlements

Current Year
Direct
Services to
Students
at School
Sites ($)

Current Year
Direct
Services to
Students
at School
Sites (%)

EIA — State Compensatory
Education

LCFF

LCFF

EIA — Limited English Proficient

School and Library Improvement
Block Grant

LCFF

LCFF

After School Education and Safety
Program

Child Development Program

Educational Equity

Gifted and Talented Education

LCFF

LCFF

Tobacco Use Prevention
Education — (Prop. 99)

High Priority Schools Grant
Program (HPSG)

School Safety and Violence
Prevention Act (AB 1113)

Healthy Start

Dropout Prevention and Recovery
Act: School-based Pupil
Motivation and Maintenance
Program (SB 65)

English Language Acquisition
Program

Community Based English
Tutoring

Other (describe) — Art & Music
Block Grant

LCFF

LCFF

TOTAL

20




Part |: Descriptions - District Planning

Once local strengths and needs are identified as a result of examining and
evaluating current district-level data, specific descriptions can be written of how
program goals will be implemented to improve student academic achievement.
On the pages that follow, the LEA will provide descriptions and information
about how it plans to address the requirements of NCLB/LCAP based upon
results of the needs assessment.

Collectively, these descriptions, along with the Assurances in Part |ll of this
document, comprise the LEA Plan.

District Profile

Mission Statement

Our mission is to provide a safe learning environment that challenges all students to
achieve academic excellence, develop their creative potential, and acquire
marketable career, technical, and personal skills.

Our vision is to provide the opportunity for all students to be healthy, responsible,
productive citizens, skilled workers, lifelong learners, and contributors to their local
and world communities.

Profile

The Black Oak Mine Unified School District ADA (1070), joins with the Georgetown
Divide Community to provide a high quality education in a healthy and safe
environment. We are pleased to provide information and resources to the parents and
communities we serve, and to those considering moving to the Georgetown Divide.
The “Divide” is a landmass dividing the north and south forks of the American River
and covers 412 square miles. Currently, B.O.M.U.S.D. is home to six schools, which
serve a diverse economic background, Golden Sierra Junior Senior High School (7-
12), Northside School and Georgetown School, two elementary schools (Tk-6),
American River Charter (TK-12), and Otter Creek, the district’s necessary small
school (TK-5th). The student demographics include: 1.6% Native American, .8%
Asian, .5% Black or African American, 9.8% Hispanic, 85% White and 2.1 % other.
7% of our students are English Learners, 46.5 % of our students are
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged and Foster Youth.

Our community is integral to the success of our students and schools. Families are
the foundation for student success and as such families are active partners in shared
decision making. Black Oak Mine Unified School District's Goals for Excellence in
keeping with our mission of preparing students for college and career, our district
priorities, actions, and allocation of resources have been inspired by our efforts to
identify best practices and close the achievement gap. We have directed professional
development toward using data to drive decisions, and provide access to the
development of Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for all student groups on key
6

21



indicators of student achievement. Embedded in the goals in this document are the
following areas of focus.

o Exceptional Citizens-establish partnerships with our families and community to
increase academic success through citizenship

o Resourceful Learners- Implement strategies to engage students in their own
learning and interventions to eliminate barriers to student success

* Lifelong Learners- increase academic achievement of all students through
effective instructional and best practices.

e Curious and Imaginative Learners- increase academic achievement through a
challenging and engaging curriculum

o Effective Communicators -

¢ Healthy Individuals- ensure that all systems are responsive to the needs of our
students and their families through the equitable allocation of resources and
programs that enable every student to succeed.

e Academically Responsible Students- instill responsibility in our students for
their own learning

Data Driven Reform/Fiscal Conditions/ Special Programs

The educational outreach of the Black Oak Mine Unified School District has been
compromised by the fiscal recession of (2008-9) that resulted and continues to effect
the progress of K-12 education. B.O.M.U.S.D. has been fortunate that its membership
is comprised of staff who continually think outside the box in regards to meeting the
diverse needs of an economically challenged population through creative pairings
with services in partnering districts and the El Dorado County Office of Education.
This approach has been leveraged in order to ensure we continue to educate the
whole child in safe and modernized facilities. As a result, we continue to strive to

e Reduce class size

» Offer breakfast and healthy lunches to all students

* Maintain a library program at each school

* Develop a music program and expand the program each year

» Offer technology and keyboarding instruction and develop benchmark
standards that reflect this instruction

o Offer academic support and enrichment in before and after school programs

e Offer school garden programs with gardening and nutrition education

o Offer Middle and high school sports athletic programs

o Offer College and Career advisers and access to A-G as well as AP

educational options
e Offer Family engagement programs, community building events, and parent
education workshops

22



BOMUSD Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)

The Local Control and Accountability (“the Plan”) is mandated by the state as the
standardized vehicle for addressing state priorities and local goals, identifying the
most effective actions and services to meet those goals, as well as accounting for the
LCFF supplemental expenditures and the indicators for monitoring progress. The
Plan includes a description of annual goals, for all pupils and for each subgroup of
pupils as stipulated in Education Code sections 52060 and 52061 (Plan Section 2).

It is important to note that while the introductory section of this plan provides an
overview of the many programs and services available to our students and families,
the LCAP is not intended to serve as the district’s strategic plan. Black Oak Mine's
LCAP focuses on the goals and actions steps that expand and improve the programs
and services directed to our high-need students, and made possible primarily with the
increased allocation of supplemental LCFF funding.

BOMUSD's Local Control and Accountability Plan strategic district goals are reflected
in the following three LCAP Goals

LCAP Goal 1: Ensure all school sites have safe, welcoming and inclusive climates for
all students and their families, so that all students are in their classes ready to learn.

LCAP Goal 2: Provide high quality classroom instruction and curriculum with an
access to a broad course of study promoting school, college and career readiness.

LCAP Goal 3: Reduce the achievement gap by ensuring that all systems are
culturally, linguistically, and equitably responsive to the needs of our students.

Parent Involvement and Engagement

Black Oak Mine Unified School District is committed to providing quality programs
and activities that meaningfully engage parents in all facets of their children’s
education and strengthen school-family partnerships for student learning. Black
Oak Mine Unified School District is also committed to supporting school sites with
their parent engagement, the district has made family and community
involvement a top priority.

Black Oak Mine Unified School District worked with three key stakeholder groups,
School Site Councils and Parent Advisory (PTA), Curriculum Council, and
Superintendent’'s Cabinet. The district convened a series of meetings for these
groups to provide input on the services, actions and goals of the Local Control
Accountability Plan (LCAP). Community members, parents, educators and students
were also provided with opportunities to learn about LCFF.

23



Local Measures of Student Performance
(Other than State-level assessments)

The Black Oak Mine Unified School District (BOMUSD) will continue to
implement a consistent process for periodically measuring student progress
toward achieving student academic achievement standards. One of the most
powerful tools in driving instruction is a balanced assessment framework which
includes benchmark and interim assessments. The benchmark/interim
assessments assess ELA and mathematics standards of a particular grade given
at strategic points throughout the year. These assessments allow teachers to
make informed instructional decisions to improve student achievement, they
define essential standards to be taught in upcoming units-of- study and provide
the opportunity for teachers to reflect on their own instruction and practice to get
better results.

The benchmark/interim assessment data coupled with other student performance
evidence, inform teachers and staff about the student learning progress. Through
the data inquiry at the schools using a collaborative inquiry process, the teachers
and staff plan what instructional adaptations need to be taken to promote further
learning.

The strategic plan outlines clear strategic objectives, which form the basis of the
work at the central office, sites and classrooms. In the area of English Language
Arts and Mathematics the following objectives support performance:

» Develop Common Core State Standards (CCSS)-aligned instruction and
curriculum in language arts that captures student interest, incorporates an
appreciation of diversity, and motivates and challenges each child -
regardless of ability level - to higher achievement.

e Develop clear expectations about what students need to know and master
at every grade level.

» Develop instruction and curriculum that connects student learning to the
real world of work.

* Invest in professional learning for teachers, support staff, and
administrators that accelerates student learning by giving children ample
opportunities to think critically, work with others, solve problems, struggle
with difficult tasks and enjoy school.

¢ Build teachers' and administrators' capacity to use the formative
assessment process to inform teaching and learning.

e Buildteachers' and administrators' capacity to develop school/family
partnerships that focus on studentlearning.

24



Part II: Needs Assessment

The needs assessments revealed a remarkable concurrence between staff and
parent points of view. Both groups indicate support for the overall direction of the
district in terms of where we have been putting our attention financially and
programmatically. Parents overwhelmingly respond that the schools, a) encourage
parent input and participation, b) prepare children to be college and career ready, c)
provide schools where their children feel safe and connected, d) have access to a
broad course of study, e) provide schools that are in good repair, f) attend schools
where good attendance is emphasized, and g) are in classes where teachers use
content and performance standards. Although a slight majority of parents feel
student achievement to be a primary focus of the schools, this question has far fewer
empbhatically positive responses. The parents’ highest priority for Activities, Services
and Expenditures is “improving classroom instructional practices, including training
for teachers”. The second highest was “tutoring for needy students” followed by
“interventions for low-achieving students”. All other priorities garner much less
support.

Staff indicate strong support for, a) that it is important for students to be college and
career ready, b) that students generally feel safe and connected, c) that the schools
are in good repair, d) that attendance is very good, e) that teachers use content and
performance standards, and f) that student achievement is the primary focus (this
item was notably more positive for staff than for parents).

The staff's highest three priorities for Activities, Services and Expenditures were the
same as for the parents. For the staff, the fourth highest priority, not too far behind
interventions for low-achieving students, was “counseling and other student support
services.”

This information from the needs assessment, coupled with our student assessment
data, provides the key support for our LCAP/ LEA decisions.

Performance Goal 1: All students will reach high standards at a minimum,
attaining proficiency or better in reading and
mathematics.

Performance Goal 2: All limited-English-proficient students will become
proficient in English and reach high academic
standards, at a minimum, attaining proficiency or
better in reading and mathematics.

Performance Goal 5: All students will graduate from high school.

LCAP Goal 2: Provide high quality classroom instruction and curriculum
with an access to a broad course of study promoting
school, college and career readiness.

LCAP Goal 3: Reduce the achievement gap by ensuring that ali systems
are culturally, linguistically, and equitably responsive to the
needs of our students.

10

25



Description of Actions/Services

Scope of
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope
of service

Funding

Provide Assessment in ELA and Math to
determine RTI instructional groups.
Substituted teacher coverage will be
needed to support professional
development.

ELEMENTARY

All
v Low Income v English Learners

v Foster Youth

v Redesignated fluent English proficient
__ Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost

1000-1999
Certificated
Salaries = $5750;

3000-3999
Employee
Benefits=$905;

Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc

Continue differentiation of instruction (core
class reduction) for ELA and social
science classes to implement new CCSS.

GSJSHS

All
v Low Income v English Learners
v Foster Youth

v Redesignated fluent English proficient
___Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost

1000-1999
Certificated
Salaries=$36306;

3000-3999
Employee
Benefits=$10307;

4000-4999
Supplies = $4996
Services/Other

5000- 5999
Operating
Expenditures
= $9595

Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc

Provide English/Language Arts/Literacy
intervention through small group
instruction.

LEA Wide

Ali

v Low Income v English Learners

v Foster Youth

v Redesignated fluent English proficient

___Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost

2000-2999
Classified
Salaries=$25990;

3000-3999
Employee
Benefits=$16250;

Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc/ Other

Provide teachers with high quality math
curriculum supports and enhancement
materials needed to support students
struggling in math at the elementary and
middle schools. (STAR 360)

LEA Wide

All
v Low Income v English Learners

v Foster Youth

v Redesignated fluent English proficient
___Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

4000-4999
Supplies = $4996

5000- 5999
Services/Other
Operating;
Expenditures =
$9595

Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc/

11

26




Description of Actions/Services

Scope of
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope

of service

Funding

Provide students with high quality
curriculum that addresses A through G
requirements through Edgenuity to
increase access to post-secondary
curriculum.

GSJSHS

All
v Low Income v English Learners

v Foster Youth

Vv Redesignated fluent English proficient
__ Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost

1000-1999
Certificated
Salaries=$24049;

3000-3999
Employee
Benefits=$4806;

5000- 5999
Services/Other
Operating;
Expenditures =
$25000

Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc

Provide ongoing professional
development workshops in CCSS English
Language Arts standards through GLAD
and Step UP to Writing.

LEA Wide

All
v Low Income v English Learners

v Foster Youth

v Redesignated fluent English proficient
___ Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost
1000-1999
Certificated
Salaries=$1500

3000-3999
Employee
Benefits=$236

4000-4999
Supplies = $3650

5000- 5999
Services/Other
Operating;
Expenditures =
$7500

Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc

Provide access to reading analyst
services for assessment and diagnostic
services.

Elementary

All
v Low Income v English Learners

v Foster Youth

v Redesignated fluent English proficient
___Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost

1000-1999
Certificated
Salaries=$3860;

3000-3999
Employee
Benefits=$1490

Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc

12

27




Description of Actions/Services

Scope of

Pupils to be served within identified scope

] L Fundin
Service |of service 9
Oversee high -risk students to increase fgg(t) sdoo
access to college and career by providing o st

appropriate academic support programs
with Intervention Support. Provide access
to programs (Read Naturally, ALEKS,
Edgenuity) that close achievement gap.

LEA-Wide

All
v Low Income v English Learners

v Foster Youth

v Redesignated fluent English proficient
__ Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Salaries=$39167;

3000-3999
Employee
Benefits=$14184;

Services/Other
Operating;
Expenditures
5000- 5999 =
$12500

Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc

Performance Goal 3:
Performance Goal 1:

attaining proficiency or better in reading and

mathematics.
All limited-English-proficient students will become

Performance Goal 2:

proficient in English and reach high academic

standards, at a minimum, attaining proficiency or

better in reading and mathematics.

LCAP Goal 2:

All students will be taught by highly qualified teachers.
All students will reach high standards at a minimum,

Provide high quality classroom instruction and curriculum

LCAP Goal 3:

13

with an access to a broad course of study promoting
school, college and career readiness.

Reduce the achievement gap by ensuring that all systems

are culturally, linguistically, and equitably responsive to the
needs of our students.

28



v Redesignated fluent English proficient
___Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Description of Actions/Services Scope of |Pupils to be served within identified scope | Eundin
Service |of service ] 9
Continue to ensure all teachers are Cost
qualiﬂgd aEr;d gpp_rop;iatel;;l cresdentiarlted lzjy Al é%%?ﬁlg?egd
providing Beginning Teacher Support an . Salaries =
Assessment (BTSA). v Low Income v English Learners $13000;
) V Foster Youth
LEA-wide . . . 3000-3999
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Employee
__ Other Benefits=$2072;
Subgroups:(Specify) Funding
Source(s):
~ _| Other
Provide (STEM) and (VAPA) activities and Cost
assemblies outside and inside the school L o
R . Certificated
day in grades TK-6 through Enrichment Salaries=$38000;
days. 3000-3999
Employee
All Benefits=$5983;
. 4000-4999
v Low Income v English Learners Supplies = $9200
Elementary v Foster Youth .
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Services/Other
Other Operating
= (Sped Expenditures
Subgroups:(Specify) 5000-5999 =
$13092
Funding
Source(s):
Base/Supp/Conc/
] Other
Support math teachers in grades TK-12 Cost
with the transition to the new Common Services/Other
: : All Operatin
Core math standards and implementation . perafing
. v Low Income v English Learners Expenditures
of standard based CA-CCSS materials for J Foster Youth 5000- 5999 =
grades TK-12 in mathematics. LEA-wide . er. ou . - $7600
v Redesignated fluent English proficient
__ Other Funding
Subgroups:(Specify) Source(s):
Other
Provide student access, instruction and
materials in the new Common Core
English Language Arts curriculum and for Al
9 guag v Low Income v English Learners
grades TK-6.
Elementary | v Foster Youth

14

29




Description of Actions/Services [Scope of [Pupils to be served within identified scope .F-un d|n )
Service |of service 9
High-speed internet connection for all Cost
school sites and District Office will be Al Services/Other
procured Operating
) v Low Income v English Learners Expenditures
teawids | Foster Youth ggggbg.g e
v Redesignated fluent English proficient '
___Other Funding
Subgroups:(Specify) Source(s):
Base
Apply for E-rate grant to support
acquisition of axis points for school All = 1 6000-
. . quipmen
wireless service. v Low Income v English Learners 6999 $67000
teawide | Foster Youth Funding
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Source(s):
___ Other Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
Provide a Library clerk for Georgetown Cost
Elementary School and Northside g )
g . Certificated
glelr:ent;ry School and Librarian at Salaries=$24280;
olden Sierra.
2000-2999
Classified
All Salaries =
. $22314; 3000-
v Low Income v English Learners 3999 Employee
Leawide |+ Foster Youth Benefits=$21052;
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Services/Other
__ Other . Operating
Subgroups:(Specify) Expenditures
5000- 5999 =
$3000
Funding
Source(s):
Supp/Conc
Provide instruction to students to learn Cost
keyboarding and technology skills through ég%?ﬁlztge%
the use of computers that promotes the All Salaries=$70000;
development of 21! Century College and v Low Income v English Learners
Career readiness. teawice | Foster Youth E(;g);fyis;g
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Benefits=$21366:
Other
Subgroups:(Specify) fatnding
’ Source(s):
Supp/Conc

15

30




Description of Actions/Services Scope of |Pupils to be served within identified scope e )
Service |of service 9
Provide instruction to students in music ?8&‘) -
curriculum. | Certificated
Al Salaries=$54000;
v Low Income v English Learners
Leawice |V Foster Youth A
. . . Employee
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Benefits=$18752;
__ Other e
Z : unding
Subgroups:(Specify) Source(s):
Base
Provide an Early Education Services Cost
Coordinator to connect readiness services é%%%lg?:d
withip Black Oak Mine Unified School All Salaries=$2000;
District. v Low Income v English Learners
Leawids | Foster Youth gty
. . - Employee
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Benefits=$310;
___Other -
. ; unding
Subgroups:(Specify) Source(s)
Supp/Conc
Provide materials and supplies for 4000-4999
readiness program classrooms and Stipplies =L5200
services including postage. All Services/Other
v Low Income v English Learners Operating
) Expenditures
LEA-wide |/ Foster'Youth . . 5000- 5999 =
v Redesignated fluent English proficient $7000
__Other Fundi
. i unding
Subgroups:(Specify) Source(s):
Supp/Conc
Provide support through Release time and | Eementey Cost
. i . 1000-1999
Goveiopment n eary chithood sducatior 4l
P y v Low Income v English Learners Salaries=$1875,
and assessments. 3000-3999
v Foster Youth Employee
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Benefits=$300;
Other Funding
- . : Source(s):
Subgroups:(Specify) Supp/Conc
Provide transportation for students SN Services/Other
i Operating
learning to use the bus. All Expenditures
v Low Income v English Learners g?gg‘ 5099 =
v Foster Youth
v Redesignated fluent English proficient Funding
Other Source(s):
e | Supp/Conc

16

Subgroups:(Specify)

31



Performance Goal 4:

All students will be educated in learning environments

that are safe, drug free, and conducive to learning.

LCAP Goal 1:

students are in their classes ready to learn.

Ensure all school sites have safe, welcoming and inclusive
climates for all students and their families, so that all

Description of Actions/Services Scope of |Pupils to be served within identified scope Fundin
Service |of service g

Train site secretarial and administration

and review with others, how to track and < All Cost

i i i Salaries=$250;
monitor all office referrals, suspensions .
. - . __Low Income __ English Learners

and alternatives to suspensions in the Foster Youth 3000-3999

student information system Site personnel | LEAwds | — er‘ u i i Employee

data entry will be monitored through a — Redesignated fluent English proficient Eﬁ;‘gmg‘;':%g;

quarterly system audit. — Other . Source(s):

Subgroups:(Specify) Base

Provide coordination of school-based Cost

services to develop, train and support é%?t?ﬁlgfe%

sites in the consistent implementation of Salaries=$12900;

culturally relevant restorative practices, .

- . i . Classified
positive behavioral intervention supports Salaries=$250;
(PBIS) that address the needs of students
) - ; - 3000-3999
in danger of suspension. Including (Link v All Employee
Crew, peer advocates- high school _ Low Income __ English Learners Benefits=$2600;
transition program that connects freshman | _, . |__ Foster Youth 4000-4999

to the high school experience).

__ Redesignated fluent English proficient
___Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Books/Supplies=1
675;

5000-5999
Services/Other
Operating
Expenditures=
$3125

Funding
Source(s):
Base

17

32




[Description of Actions/Services

Service

Scope cﬂ

Pupils to be served within identified scope
of service

Funding

Provide counseling services and access at
all sites (PIP, ERMHS, Mental Health, and
School Counseling) to insure regular,
individual and group contact with high-risk
students to oversee academic and social
environments.

LEA-wide

v All

__Low Income _ English Learners
__Foster Youth

__Redesignated fluent English proficient

__ Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost

1000-1999
Certificated
Salaries=$68510;

Classified
Employees 2000-
2999= $26252

3000-3999
Employee;
Benefits=$31391;

4000-4999

5000- 5999
Services/Other
Operating
Expenditures=
$40000

Funding
Source(s):
Base/Other

Provide access and coordination for family
engagement for all sites to partner with
parents and guardians to support their
children’s education through collaborative
connections (Passport to Success, Family
Nights) referrals, and parent education;
address particular support (academic and
behavioral) for families.

LEA-wide

v All
__Low Income __ English Learners
__Foster Youth

__Redesignated fluent English proficient
___Other
Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost

1000-1999
Certificaled
Employee
Salaries=$68510;

Classified
Employees 2000-
2999= $26252

3000-3999
Benefits=$31391;

4000-4999

5000- 5999
Services/Other
Operating
Expenditures=
$40000

Funding
Source(s):
Base/Other

Provide replaceme_ht furniture/facility
repair for all sites at the rate of 10% per
year

LEA-wide

v All
__Low Income __ English Learners
__Foster Youth

__Redesignated fluent English proficient
___Other

Subgroups:(Specify)

Cost

4000-4999
Books/Supplies=
$2000;

Funding
Source(s):
Base

18

33




Part lll: Assurances and Attachments

ASSURANES

To assure the LEA's eligibility for funds included in this Plan, the Superintendent
must provide an original signature below attesting to compliance with all of the
following statements.

GENERAL ASSURANCES

19

. Each such program will be administered in accordance with all applicable

statutes, regulations, program pians, and applications.

. The LEA will comply with all applicable supplement not supplant and

maintenance of effort requirements.

. (a) The control of funds provided under each program and title to property

acquired with program funds will be in a public agency, a non-profit private
agency, institution, organization, or Indian tribe, if the law authorizing the
program provides for assistance to those entities; (b) the public agency, non-
profit private agency, institution or organization, or Indian tribe will administer
the funds and property to the extent required by the authorizing law.

. The LEA will adopt and use proper methods of administering each such

program, including (a) the enforcement of any obligations imposed by law
on agencies, institutions, organizations, and other recipients responsible for
carrying out each program; and (b) the correction of deficiencies in program
operations that are identified through audits, monitoring, or evaluation.

. The LEA will cooperate in carrying out any evaluation of each such

program conducted by, or for, the State educational agency, the Secretary,
or other Federal officials.

. The LEA will use such fiscal control and fund accounting procedures as will

ensure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, Federal funds paid to
the applicant under each such program.

. The LEA will: (a) submit such reports to the State educational agency (which

shall make the reports available to the Governor) and the Secretary as the
State educational agency and Secretary may require to enable the State
educational agency and Secretary to perform their duties under each such
program; and (b) maintain such records, provide such information, and afford
such access to the records as the State educational agency (after consultation
with the Governor) or the Secretary may reasonably require to carry out the
State educational agency's or the Secretary's duties.

34



The LEA has consulted with teachers, school administrators, parents, and others in
the development of the local consolidated application/LEA Plan to the extent
required under Federal law governing each program included in the consolidated
application/LEA Plan.

1. Before the application was submitted, the LEA afforded a reasonable
opportunity for public comment on the application and considered such
comment.

2. 9a. The LEA will provide the certification on constitutionally protected prayer
that is required by section 9524.

3. The LEA will comply with the armed forces recruiter access provisions required
by section 9528.

20

35



TITLE |, PART A

The LEA, hereby, assures that it will:

21

1.

Participate, if selected, in the State National Assessment of Educational
Progress in 4" and 8" grade reading and mathematics carried out under
section 411(b){2} of the National Education Statistics Act of 1994.

If the LEA receives more than $500,000 in Title | funds, it will allow 1 percent
to carry out NCLB Section 1118, Parent Involvement, including promoting
family literacy and parenting skills; 95 percent of the allocation will be
distributed to schools.

Inform eligible schools and parents of schoolwide program authority and the
ability of such schools to consolidate funds from Federal, State, and local
sources.

Provide technical assistance and support to schoolwide programs.

Work in consultation with schools as the schools develop the schools' plans
pursuant to section 1114 and assist schools as the schools implement such
plans or undertake activities pursuant to section 1115 so that each school
can make adequate yearly progress toward meeting the State student
academic achievement standards.

Fulfill such agency's school improvement responsibilities under section
1116, including taking actions under paragraphs (7) and (8) of section
1116(b).

Provide services to eligible children attending private elementary schools and
secondary schools in accordance with section 1120, and timely and meaningful
consultation with private school officials regarding such services.

Take into account the experience of model programs for the educationally
disadvantaged, and the findings of relevant scientifically based research
indicating that services may be most effective if focused on students in the
earliest grades at schools that receive funds under this part.

In the case of an LEA that chooses to use funds under this part to provide
early childhood development services to low-income children below the age
of compulsory school attendance, ensure that such services comply with
the performance standards established under section 641A(a) of the Head
Start Act.

10. Work in consultation with schools as the schools develop and implement

their plans or activities under sections 1118 and 1119 and California
Education Code Section 64001.

36



22

11. Comply with requirements regarding the qualifications of teachers and
paraprofessionals and professional development.

12. Inform eligible schools of the local educational agency's authority to obtain
waivers on the school's behalf under Title IX.

13.Coordinate and collaborate, to the extent feasible and necessary as
determined by the local educational agency, with the State educational
agency and other agencies providing services to children, youth, and
families with respect to a school in school improvement, corrective action, or
restructuring under section 1116 if such a school requests assistance from
the local educational agency in addressing major factors that have
significantly affected student achievement at the school.

14.Ensure, through incentives for voluntary transfers, the provision of
professional development, recruitment programs, or other effective
strategies, that low-income students and minority students are not taught at
higher rates than other students by unqualified, out-of-field, orinexperienced
teachers.

15.Use the results of the student academic assessments required under
section 1111(b)(3), and other measures or indicators available to the
agency, to review annually the progress of each school served by the
agency and receiving funds under this part to determine whether all of the
schools are making the progress necessary to ensure that all students will
meet the State's proficient level of achievement on the State academic
assessments described in section 1111(b)(3) within 12 years from the
baseline year described in section 1111(b)(2)(E)(ii).

16. Ensure that the results from the academic assessments required under
section 1111(b)(3) will be provided to parents and teachers as soon as is
practicably possible after the test is taken, in an understandable and uniform
format and, to the extent practicable, provided in a language or other mode
of communication that the parents canunderstand.

17. Assist each school served by the agency and assisted under this partin
developing or identifying examples of high-quality, effective curricula
consistent with section 1111(b)(S)(D) and California Education Code
Section 64001.

18. Ensure that schools in school improvement status spend not less than ten
percent of their Title | funds to provide professional development (in the
area[s] of identification to teachers and principals) for each fiscal year.

19.Prepare and disseminate an annual LEA report card in accordance with
section 1111(h) (2).

37



20.Where applicable, the applicant will comply with the comparability of

services requirement under section 1120A(c). In the case of a local
educational agency to which comparability applies, the applicant has
established and implemented an agency-wide salary schedule; a policy to
ensure equivalence among schools in teachers, administrators, and other
staff; and a policy to ensure equivalence among schools in the provision of
curriculum materials and instructional supplies. Documentation will be on
file to demonstrate that the salary schedule and local policies result in
comparability and will be updated biennially.

TITLE |, PART D - SUBPART 2

1.

Where feasible, ensure that educational programs in the correctional facility
are coordinated with the student's home school, particularly with respect to
a student with an individualized education program under Part B of the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act.

Work to ensure that the correctional facility is staffed with teachers and
other qualified staffs that are trained to work with children and youth with
disabilities taking into consideration the unique needs of such children and
youth.

Ensure that the educational programs in the correctional facility are related
to assisting students to meet high academic achievement standards.

TITLE II, PART A

23

1. The LEA, hereby, assuresthat:

* The LEA will target funds to schools within the jurisdiction of the
local educational agency that:

(A) Have the lowest proportion of highly qualified teachers;

(B) Have the largest average class size;or

(C) Are identified for school improvement under section
111G(b).

» The LEA will comply with section 9501 (regarding participation by
private school children andteachers).

e The LEA has performed the required assessment of local needs
for professional development and hiring, taking into account the
activities that need to be conducted in order to give teachers the
means, including subject matter knowledge and pedagogy skills, and
to give principals the instructional leadership skills to help teachers,

38



24

to provide students with the opportunity to meet California's
academic content standards. This needs assessment was conducted
with the involvement of teachers, including teachers participating in
programs under Part A of Title 1.

The LEA will assure compliance with the requirements of
professional development as defined in section 9101 (34).

39



TITLE I, PART D

25

1. The LEA has an updated, local, long-range, strategic, educational technology
plan in place that includes the following:

Strategies for using technology to improve academic achievement
and teacher effectiveness.

Goals aligned with challenging state standards for using advanced
technology to improve student academic achievement.

Steps the applicant will take to ensure that all students and
teachers have increased access to technology and to help ensure
that teachers are prepared to integrate technology effectively into
curricula and instruction.

Promotion of curricula and teaching strategies that integrate
technology, are based on a review of relevant research, and lead to
improvements in student academic achievement.

Ongoing, sustained professional development for teachers,
principals, administrators, and school library media personnel to
further the effective use of technology in the classroom or library
media center.

A description of the type and costs of technology to be acquired
with Ed Tech funds, including provisions for interoperability of
components.

A description of how the applicant will coordinate activities funded
through the Ed Tech program with technology-related activities
supported with funds from other sources.

A description of how the applicant will integrate technology into
curricula and instruction, and a timeline for this integration.

Innovative delivery strategies - a description of how the applicant
will encourage the development and use of innovative strategies
for the delivery of specialized or rigorous courses and curricula
through the use of technology, including distance learning
technologies, particularly in areas that would not otherwise have
access to such courses or curricula due to geographical distances or
insufficient resources.

A description of how the applicant will use technology effectively to

promote parental involvement and increase communication with
parents.

40



Collaboration with adult literacy service providers.

Accountability measures - a description of the process and
accountability measures that the applicant will use to evaluate the
extent to which activities funded under the program are effective in
integrating technology into curricula and instruction, increasing the
ability of teachers to teach, and enabling student to reach
challenging state academic standards.

Supporting resources - a description of the supporting resources,
such as services, software, other electronically delivered learning
materials, and print resources that will be acquired to ensure
successful and effective uses of technology.

2. The LEA must use a minimum of 25 percent of their funds to provide ongoing,

26

sustained, and intensive high quality professional development in the integration
of advanced technology into curricula and instruction and in using those
technologies to create new learning environments.

Any LEA that does not receive services at discount rates under section
254(h)(5) of the Communications Act of 1934 (47 U.S.C. 254(h)(5)hereby
assures the SEA that the LEA will not use any Title Il, Part D funds to
purchase computers used to access the Internet, or to pay for direct costs
associated with accessing the Internet, for such school unless the school,
school board, local educational agency, or other authority with responsibility for
administration of such school:

Has in place a policy of Internet safety for minors that includes the
operation of a technology protection measure with respect to any of
its computers with Internet access that protects against access
through such computers to visual depictions that are obscene, child
pornography, or harmful to minors

Is enforcing the operation of such technology protection measure
during any use of such computers by minors

Has in place a policy of Internet safety that includes the operation
of a technology protection measure with respect to any of its
computers with Internet access that protects against access
through such computers to visual depictions that are obscene or
child pornography, and is enforcing the operation of such
technology protection measure during any use of such computers,
and

Any LEA that does receive such discount rates hereby assures the
SEA that it will have in place a policy of Internet safety for minors
required by Federal or State law.

41



TITLE Il

1.

The LEA assures that it consulted with teachers, researchers, school
administrators, parents, and, if appropriate, with education-related
community groups, nonprofit organizations, and institutions of higher
education in developing the LEA Plan.

The LEA will hold elementary and secondary schools accountable for
increasing English language proficiency and for LEP subgroups making
adequate yearly progress.

The LEA is complying with Section 3302 prior to, and throughout, each
school year.

The LEA annually will assess the English proficiency of all students with
limited English proficiency participating in programs funded under this part.

The LEA has based its proposed plan on scientifically based research on
teaching limited-English-proficient students.

The LEA ensures that the programs will enable to speak, read, write, and
comprehend the English language and meet challenging State academic
content and student academic achievement standards.

The LEA is not in violation of any State law, including State constitutional
law, regarding the education of limited-English-proficient students,
consistent with Sections 3126 and 3127.

TITLE IV, PART A

27

1.

The LEA assures that it has developed its application through timely and
meaningful consultation with State and local government representatives,
representatives of schools to be served (including private schools),
teachers and other staff, parents, students, community-based
organizations, and others with relevant and demonstrated expertise in drug
and violence prevention activities (such as medical, mental health, and law
enforcement professionals).

The activities or programs to be funded comply with the principles of
effectiveness described in section 4115{a} and foster a safe and drug-free
learning environment that supports academic achievement.

The LEA assures that funds under this subpart will be used to increase the
level of State, local, and other non-Federal funds that would, in the absence
of funds under this subpart, be made available for programs and activities
authorized under this subpart, and in no case supplant such State, local,
and other non-Federal funds.

42



4.

5.

6.

Drug and violence prevention programs supported under this subpart
convey a clear and consistent message that acts of violence and the illegal
use of drugs are wrong and harmful.

The LEA has, or the schools to be served have, a plan for keeping schools
safe and drug-free thatincludes:

e Appropriate and effective school discipline policies that prohibit
disorderly conduct, the illegal possession of weapons, and the
illegal use, possession, distribution, and sale of tobacco, alcohol,
and other drugs by students.

e Security procedures at school and while students are on the way
to and from school.

e Prevention activities that are designed to create and maintain safe,
disciplined, and drug-free environments.

e A crisis management plan for responding to violent or traumatic
incidents on schoolgrounds.

e A code of conduct policy for all students that clearly states the
responsibilities of students, teachers, and administrators in
maintaining a classroom environment that:

o Allows a teacher to communicate effectively with all students in
the class.

o Allows all students in the class to learn.

o Has consequences that are fair, and developmentally
appropriate.

o Considers the student and the circumstances of the situation.

o Is enforced accordingly.

The application and any waiver request under section 4115(a)(3) (to allow
innovative activities or programs that demonstrate substantial likelihood of
success) will be available for public review after submission of the
application.

TITLE IV, PART A, SUBPART 3

28

1.

The LEA assures that it has, in effect, a written policy providing for the
suspension from school for a period of not less than one year of any
student who is determined to have brought a firearm to school or who
possesses a firearm at school and the referral of a student who has
brought a weapon or firearm to the criminal or juvenile justice system.
Such a policy may allow the Superintendent to modify such suspension
requirement for a student on a case-by-case basis.

43



TITLE V, PART A

1. The LEA has provided, in the allocation of funds for the assistance authorized
by this part and in the planning, design, and implementation of such
innovative assistance programs, for systematic consultation with parents of
children attending elementary schools and secondary schools in the area
served by the LEA, with teachers and administrative personnel in such
schools, and with such other groups involved in the implementation of this part
(such as librarians, school counselors, and other pupil services personnel) as
may be considered appropriate by the LEA.

2. The LEA will comply with this Part, including the provisions of section 5142
concerning the participation of children enrolled in private nonprofit schools,

3. The LEA will keep such records, and provide such information to the SEA, as
may be reasonably required for fiscal audit and program evaluation.

4. The LEA will annually evaluate the programs carried out under this Part, and that
evaluation:

e Willbe used to make decisions about appropriate changes in programs
for the subsequentyear;

o Will describe how assistance under this part affected student
academic achievement and will include, at a minimum, information and
data on the use of funds, the types of services furnished, and the
students served under this part; and

o WIill be submitted to the SEA at the time and in the manner requested
by the SEA.

New LEAP Assurances

1. Uniform Management Information and Reporting System: the LEA assures
that itwill provide to the California Department of Education (COE) information
for the uniform management information and reporting system required by No
Child Left Behind, Title IV in the format prescribed by COE. That information
will include:

(i) Truancy rates;

(i) The frequency, seriousness, and incidence of violence and drug-related
offenses resulting in suspensions and expulsions in elementary schools
and secondary schools in the State;

(ii) The types of curricula, programs, and services provided by the chief
executive officer, the State educational agency, local educational
agencies, and other recipients of funds under this subpart; and

29

44



(iv) The incidence and prevalence, age of onset, perception of health risk, and
perception of social disapproval of drug use and violence by youth in
schools and communities. (Section 4112, General Provisions, Title 1V,
Part A, PL 107-110)

2. Unsafe School Choice Policy: the LEA assures that it will establish and
implement a policy requiring that a student attending a persistently dangerous
public elementary school or secondary school, as determined by the State, or
who becomes a victim of a violent criminal offense, as determined by State
law, while in or on the grounds of a public elementary school or secondary
school that the student attends, be allowed to attend a safe public elementary
or secondary school within the local educational agency, including a public
charter school. The LEA will submit on a format to be designated by COE the
information the state requires to complete annual federal reporting
requirements on the number of schools that have been designated
"persistently dangerous” in accordance with California State Board of
Education policy. (Section 9532, General Provisions, Title IX, PL 107-11 0)

Other
1. The LEA assures that a minimum of 95 percent of all students and a

minimum number of students in each subgroup (at both the school and district
levels) will participate in the state's assessments program.

30

45



SIGNATURE PAGE

(Signatures must be original. Please use blue ink.)

The superintendent and governing board of the LEA submitting this Plan must sign on behaif of all
participants included in the preparation of the Plan. LEAs in Program Improvement Year 3 assigned or
required to access the services of a District Assistance and Intervention Team (DAIT) or other technical
assistance provider must also secure signatures from the DAIT leads or other technical assistance
provider leads.

Jeremy Mevers

Printed or typed name of Superintendent Date Signature of Superintendent

William Drescher

Printed or typed name of Board President Date Signature of Board President

Certification: | hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be
observed by this LEA and thal, to the best of my knowledge, information contained in this Plan is
correct and complete. Legal assurances for all programs are accepted as the basic legal condition
for the operation of selected projects and programs and copies of assurances are retained onsite. |
certify that we accept all general and program specific assurances for Titles I, Ii, and/or lll as
appropriate, except for those for which a waiver has been obtained. A copy of all waivers will remain
on file. | certify that actual ink signatures for this LEA Plan/Plan Addendum/Action Plan are on file,
including signatures of any required external providers, i.e., DAIT or other technical assistance
provider.

31

46



APPENDIX A

On May 30, 2002, the California State Board of Education (SBE) adopted the five
goals and 12 performance indicators for No Child Left behind (NCLB), as set forth in
the Federal Register Notice of May 22, 2002. The SBE's adoption of the specified
goals and performance indicators represents California's commitment to the
development of an accountability system to achieve the goals of NCLB.

Collectively, NCLB's goals, performance indicators, and performance targets
constitute California's framework for ESEA accountability. The framework provides
the basis for the state's improvement efforts, informing policy decisions by the
SBE and implementation efforts by the California Department of Education (COE)
to fully realize the system envisioned by NCLB; it also provides a basis for
coordination with the State Legislature and the Governor's Office.

California’s NCLB Performance Goals and Performance Indicators

Performance Goal 1: All students will reach high standards, at a
minimum attaining proficiency or better in reading and mathematics,
by 2013-2014.

1.4 Performance indicator: The percentage of students, inthe
aggregate and for each subgroup, who are above the proficient
level in reading on the State's assessment.(These subgroups are
those for which the ESEA requires State reporting, as identified in

section 1111(h)(1)(C)(i). )

1.2 Performance indicator: The percentage of students, inthe
aggregate and in each subgroup, who are at or above the proficient
level in mathematics on the State's assessment. (These subgroups
are those for which the ESEA requires State reporting, as identified
in section 1111(h)(C)(i)).

1.3 Performance indicator: The percentage of Title | schools that make
adequate yearly progress.

Performance Goal 2: All limited-English-proficient students will become
proficient in English and reach high academic standards, ata minimum
attaining proficiency orbetter in reading/language arts and mathematics.

2.1. Performance indicator: The percentage of limited-English-proficient
students, determined by cohort, who have attained English proficiency

by the end of the school year.

2.2 Performance indicator: The percentage of limited-English-
proficient students who are at or above the proficient level in
reading/language arts on the State's assessment, as reported for
performance indicator 1.1.

32

47



2.3 Performance indicator: The percentage of limited-English-proficient
students who are at or above the proficient level in mathematics on
the State's assessment, as reported for performance indicator 1.2.

Performance Goal 3: By 2005-06, all students will be taught by highly qualified
teachers.

3.1 Performance indicator: The percentage of classes being taught by
"highly qualified” teachers (as the term is defined in section 9101(23)
of the ESEA), in the aggregate and in "high-poverty" schools (as the
term is defined in section 1111(h)(1)(C)(viii) ofthe ESEA).

3.2 Performance indicator: The percentage of teachers receiving
high-quality professional development. (See definition of
"professional development” in section 9101(34).

3.3 Performance indicator: The percentage of paraprofessionals
(excluding those with sole duties as translators and parent
involvement assistants) who are qualified. (See criteria in section
1119(c) and (d).

Performance Goal 4: All students will be educated in learning environments
that are safe, drug free, and conducive to learning.

4.1 Performance indicator: The percentage of persistently dangerous
schools, as defined by the State.

Performance Goal 5: All students will graduate from high school.

5.1 Performance indicator: The percentage of students who graduate
from high school, with a regular diploma:

e Disaggregated by race, ethnicity, gender, disability status,
migrant status, English proficiency, and status as economically
disadvantaged and

e Calculated in the same manner as used in National Center for
Education Statistics reports on Common Core of Data.

5.2 Performance indicator: The percentage of students who drop out of
school:

e Disaggregated by race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, migrant
status, English proficiency, and status as economically
disadvantaged and

33

48



34

Calculated in the same manner as used in National Center for
Education Statistics reports on Common Core of Data.

49



APPENDIX B

Links to Data Web sites

Below is a listing of Web site links for accessing district-level data and information
to be used by the LEA in developing this Plan:

Academic Performance Index (API)
http://www.cde.ca.qov/ta/ac/ap/

California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS)
http://www.cde.ca.qgov/ds/sd/cb/

» California English Language Development Test (CELDT)
http://www.cde.ca.qov/ta/ta/el/

+ California High School Exit Exam (CAHSEE)
http://www.cde.ca.gov/talta/hs/

» California Standardized Test(CST)
hitp://www:cde.ca,gov/ta/ta/sr/quidecst08.asp

DataQuest
http://data:1.cde.ca.govidataquestl

School Accountability Report Card (SARC)
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/

Standardized Testing and Reporting (STAR) Program
http://www.cde.ca.qgov/ta/ta/sr/

35

50



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 182

MEETING DATE:

FROM:

RECOMMENDATION:

BACKGROUND:

km/board/2-8-18/BOMTA Agreement

Agreement between the Black Oak Mine Unified School
District and the Black Oak Mine Teachers Association for
the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 school years and the AB
1200 Disclosure

February 8, 2018

Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
Shelly King, Personnel Services Coordinator

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the
Agreement between the Black Oak Mine Unified School
District and the Black Oak Mine Teachers Association for
the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 school years and the AB
1200 Disclosure.

Black Oak Mine Teachers Association negotiating team
and the District negotiating team have reached an
agreement for the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19 school

years.

51



MEDIATED TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
THE BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND THE
BLACK OAK MINE TEACHERS ASSOCIATION
January 17,2018

1. The District shall make necessary changes to the certificated salary schedules and
Appendix B in the BOMTA contract as follows:

a) Effective July 1, 2017, Master’s Degree stipend will increase from $500 to
$1,000 and Doctoral Degree stipend will increase from $1,000 to $1,500;

b) Effective the date of Association ratification, Supplemental and Other
Hourly Assignment pay will increase from $20 and $25 per hour to $30
per hour;

c) Effective the date of Association ratification, Substitute rate of pay for
covering classes will be $40.50 per hour;

d) The Counselor’s Salary Schedule shall be amended to include the District
Nurse retroactive to July 1, 2016. The current Nurse’s Salary schedule
shall be terminated.

2. All Bargaining unit members, in paid status as of July 1, 2017, shall receive a .5%
off-schedule payment for regular salary earned in 2016-2017.

3. All bargaining unit members, in paid status as of January 8, 2018, shall receive a
1% on-schedule salary increase retroactive to July 1, 2017.

4. All bargaining unit members who will be employed as of July 1, 2018, shall
receive a 1% on-schedule salary increase beginning July 1, 2018.

5. Term of Agreement (Article XXI) - Except as necessary and as jointly agreed for
issues having to do with Contract clarity, Parties agree that the term of the
agreement shall extend through June 30, 2019. Under these terms, parties agree
that negotiations are concluded through term of contract.

DATED: January 17,2018

SIGNED:

O )

David Delongchamp, BOMTA Lead ﬁégotiator

LA~ S

]e;emy Meyers,éilperintendent, BOMUSD

52



DISCLOSURE OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
In Accordance with AB1200 (Statutes of 1991, Chapter 1213); G.C. 3547.5; CCR, Title V, Section 15449

The proposed agreement is a 3 year agreement that covers the period beginning 7/01/2016 and ending 06/30/2019, and will be acted upon by
the Governing Board at its meeting on February 08, 2018. The General Fund is impacted as follows. lmpact on other funds is addressed in

the narrative.

Bargaining Unit Group

$41,085 in 16-17

{Please use separate disclosure for each group) Check one  Costof 1% *
Certificated X 40,950
Classified
Confidential/Management
Other

*includes salary and related benefits, 8.9. STRS, PERS, Workers Compensalio

Proposed Change in Compensation

n, Unemployment

Fiscal Impact of Proposed Agreement

%

Compensation —vear €ars |
P Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 F?;"_T ;c::xr.z ‘;:{ar.
FY - 17-18 | FY - 1819 | FY - 19-20 17.18 18.14 19.20
Salary Schedule - Increase(Decrease) 47.206 48,505 115%|  1.48%
Step and Column - Increase (Decrease) due to
movement plus any changes due to settlement 100,685 90,934 2.46%| 2.22%
Other Compensation
(complete description below) 31,983 0.78%
Statutory Benefits - Increase {Decrease) In STRS,
PERS,FICA,WC,Ul,Medicare, etc. (may be included In costs above or
shown separately
Health/Welfare Benefits - Increase (Decrease) ) } }
Vetal Compensation 179,874 139,439 - 439%|  3.41%
T |
otal Number of Represented Employees 56 56
Total Compensation Average Cost per Employee -
Increase (Decrease) 3,226 2,501 -

Other Compensation - Increase (Decrease)
(Stipends, Bonuses, etc.) Provide Description below:
BOMTA members employed as of July 1, 2017 will receive an off-schedule payment of .5% on 2016-17 regular salary. Ina
addition, BOMTA members employed as of July 1, 2017 will receive an increase of the Masters Stipend from $500 to $1,000
and the Doctoral Degree Stripend from $1,000 to $1,500. Hourly assignment pay will increase from $20 & $25 to $30. The
BOMTA member substitute rate of pay for covering classes will be $40.50 per hour.

9 Were any additional steps, columns, or ranges YES
added to the schedules?
If yes, please explain: J
10 Does this bargaining group have a negotiated YES NO

cap for Health and Welfare benefits
If yes, please indicate the cap amount.

53



Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 2 of 7

A.

Proposed change in compensation. Provide a brief narrative of the proposed change in
compensation, including percentage change(s), effective date(s), and comments and
explanations as necessary

In addition to the Other Compensation described on page one, all BOMTA members employed as of January 8,
2018 will receive a 1% on schedule salary increase retroactive to July 1, 2017. All BOMTA members employed
as of July 1, 2018 will receive a 1% on-going increase to the salary schedule. The counselor salary schedule will
be amended to include the District Nurse and is retroactive to July 1, 2016.

Proposed negotiated changes in non-compensation items (e.g. class size adjustments,
staff development days, teacher prep time, etc.)

N/A

What are the specific impacts on instructional and support programs to accommodate
the settlement? Include the impact of non-negotiated changes such as staff reductions and
program reductions/eliminations.

The district is reviewing all areas of district operations for efficiencies and reductions.

What contingency language is included in the proposed agreement? Include specific
areas identified for reopeners, applicable fiscal years, and specific contingency language.

N/A

Identify other major provisions that do not directly affect the district's costs, such as
binding arbitrations, grievance procedures, etc.

N/A

54



Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 3 of 7

F.  Will this agreement create, or increase an operating deficit in the current or
subsequent year(s)? An operating deficit is defined to exist when a fund's
expenditures and other financing uses exceed its revenues and other financing
sources in a given year. If yes, explain the amounts and justification for doing so.

The off-schedule payment is funded with budgetary savings from 2016-17 and in the district reserve.
The on-going funding increases the operating deficit in which BOMUSD is aclively analyzing areas for
reduction.

G. Source of funding for proposed agreement.

Current year:
General fund

How will ongoing cost of the proposed agreement be funded in future years?

BOMUSD is currently discussing various restructure ideas and reductions for declining enroliment as
well as recognizing changing facts in the California Budget. Additionaily, attorney/consulting costs that
have been budgeted can be reduced since the need for fact-finding has been diverted

If multi-year agreement, what is the source of funding, including assumptions used,
to fund these obligations in future years? (Remember to include compounding

effects in meeting obligations).
The compounding affect is accounted in the MYP including updates in projected LCFF funding from
the Governor's proposal

For multi-year agreements, please provide a multi-year financial projection
covering the term of the agreement. Include all assumptions used in the projections
enroliment growth, COLA, deficits, etc.

H. Describe the financial impact on other funds affected by the proposed settlement -

consider Cafeteria, Adult Education, Deferred Maintenance
N/A

55



Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement

G.
1.

3.

Impact of Proposed Agreement on Current Year Unrestricted Reserves

Page 4 of 7

State Reserve Standard
I

a. Total expenditures, transfers out, and uses (including cost of $12,427,708
proposal

b. State Standard Minimum EUR Percentage for this district 4%
c. State Standard Minimum EUR amount for this district 497,108

(greater of line 1-c or $50,000 for districts w/less than 1,001 ADA)

Budgeted Unrestricted reserve (after impact of Proposed Agreement

a. General Fund budgeted Unrestricted EUR 601,829
b. General Fund budgeted Unrestricted Unappropriated amount
c. Special Reserve Fund budgeted EUR

d. Special Reserve Fund budgeted Unappropriated amount -
e. Total District budgeted Unrestricted reserves $ 601,829

Do Unrestricted reserves meet the state minimum standard amount?
Yes [_x ] Mo

56




Page 5 of 7

Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement

IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
In accordance with E.C. 42142

2017-18
(Col. 1) (Col. 2)

Latest Board- Revisions (Col. 4)
approved budget Necessary as a Total impact on
before settlement | result of proposed (Col. 3) budget (col.
(as of ) 1st Interim settlement Other Revisions 1+2+43

REVENUES
Revenue Limit Sources (8010-8099) 9,424,891 $ 9,424,891
Remaining Revenues (8100-8799) 2,343,104 11,518 | $ 2,354,622
TOTAL REVENUES 11,767,995 - 11,518 | $ 11,779,513
EXPENDITURES
1000 Certificated Salaries 4,236,237 67,177 1,994 | § 4,305,408
2000 Classified Salaries 2,294,771 10,156 | $ 2,304,927
3000 Employee Benefits 2,855,988 12,012 (8,464)| $ 2,859,536
4000 Books and Supplies 722,259 24,233 | § 746,492
5000 Services and Operating Expenses 1,310,499 (69,666)| $ 1,240,833
6000 Capital Outlay 198,655 (23,526)| $ 175,129
7000 Other (plus future decreases TBD) 366,625 277 | $ 366,902
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,985,034 79,189 (64,998)| $ 11,999,227
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) -217,039 (79,189) 76,514 | $ (219,714)
Other Sources and Transfers In 4,605 3$ 4,605
Other Uses and Transfers Out 37,331 $ 37,331
CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN FUND BALANCE -249,765 (79,189) 76,514 | $ (252,440)
BEGINNING BALANCE 2,013,923 $ 2,013,923
ENDING BALANCE 1,764,158 $ 1,761,483

57



Page 6 of 7

Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement

IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET
In accordance with E.C. 42142

2018/19

2019/20

(Col. 2)
Revisions

Necessary as a
result of proposed

settlement

Other Revisions

(Col. 4)
Total impact on
budget (col. 1+2+3

Other Revisions

Total impact on
budget (col. 1+2+3

REVENUES
Revenue Limit Sources (8010-8099)
Remaining Revenues (8100-8799)
TOTAL REVENUES
EXPENDITURES
1000 Certificated Salaries
2000 Classified Salaries
3000 Employee Benefits
4000 Books and Supplies
5000 Services and Operating Expenses
6000 Capital Outlay
7000 Other (plus future decreases TBD)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT)
Other Sources and Transfers In
Other Uses and Transfers Out
CURRENT YEAR INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN FUND BALANCE

BEGINNING BAILANCE
ENDING BALANCE

40,512

7,993

48,505
(48,505)

(48,505)

247,620
(275,827)
(28,207)

5,242
39,179
140,176
(159,643)
(396)
(107,716)
57,635
(25,523)
(2,684)

6,902

(9,586)

$ 9,672,511
$ 2,078,795
11,751,306

R

4,351,162
2,344,106
3,007,705
586,849
1,240,437
67,413
424,537
12,022,209
(270,903)
4,605
44,233

€ PO A BB P P PP P P

L2

(310,531)

3 1,761,483
$ 1,450,951

h & H PO PP BB P

«*»

38,493
(259,425)

184,745
66,471
146,101
(13,018)
69,451
(67,413)
(47,959)
338,378
(338,378)

4,000

$ 9,711,004
$ 1,819,370
11,530,374

L]

4,535,907
2,410,577
3,153,806
573,831
1,309,888
376,578
12,360,587
(830,213)
4,605
48,233

H A H P PP &h B &Hh O

A

(873,841)

$ 1,450,951
$ 577,110

58



Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 7 of 7

Certification No. 1

In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Section 3547.5, the Superintendent and Chief
Business Officer of Black Oak Mine Unified School District, hereby certify that the District can meet the costs
incurred under the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the District and the California Teachers
Association Bargaining Unit, during the term of the agreement from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2019.

The budget revisions necessary to meet the costs of the agreement in each year of its term will be submitted
upon completion of the 2nd interim report.

District Superintendent Date
(Signature)

Chief Business Official Date
(Signature)

Certification #2

The information provided in this document summarizes the financial implications of the proposed agreement
and is submitted to the Governing Board for public disclosure of the major provisions of the agreement (as
provided in the Public Disclosure of Proposed Bargaining Agreement in accordance with the requirements of
AB 1200 and Government Code Section 3547.5.

District Superintendent (or Designee) Date
(Signature)

Contact Person Phone

After public disclosure of the major provisions contained in this summary, the Governing Board at its
meeting on February 8, 2018, took action to approved the proposed Agreement with the
Black Oak Mine Teacher's Association Bargaining Unit.

President (or Clerk), Governing Board Date
(Signature)

59



60



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 183

MEETING DATE:

FROM:

RECOMMENDATION:

BACKGROUND:

Agreement between the Black Oak Mine Unified School
District and Black Oak Mine Confidential, Classified
Management, Mental Health Therapist, and
Administrative Employees for the 2016-17, 2017-18, and
2018-19 school years and the AB 1200 Disclosure

February 8, 2018

Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
Shelly King, Personnel Services Coordinator

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve the
Agreement between the Black Oak Mine Unified School
District and Black Oak Mine Confidential, Classified
Management,  Mental ~ Health  Therapist, and
Administrative Employees for the 2016-17, 2017-18, and
2018-19 school years and the AB 1200 Disclosure.

The Black Oak Mine Confidential, Classified Management,
Mental Health Therapist, and Administrative Employees
negotiating team and the District negotiating team have
reached an agreement for the 2016-17, 2017-18, and 2018-19
school years.

km/board/2-8-18/ BOM Employee Agreement

61



TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
THE BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND THE
CONFIDENTIAL AND CLASSIFIED MANAGEMENT GROUPS
January 29, 2018

1. Confidential and Classified Management employees, in paid status as of July 1,
2017, shall receive a .5% off-schedule payment for regular salary earned in 2016-

2017.

2. Confidential and Classified Management employees, in paid status as of January
8, 2018, shall receive a 1% on-schedule salary increase retroactive to July 1, 2017.

3. Confidential and Classified Management employees who will be employed as of
July 1, 2018, shall receive a 1% on-schedule salary increase beginning July 1, 2018.
DATED: January 29, 2018

SIGNED:

Skt Ko

Shelly King, &;sonnaﬁéwices Coordinator (Confidential)

Jing Sle Lange, Flsual Technician (Confidential)

e NG5

Denjse Malito, Accounting Technician (Confidential)

Ked LN

Keel}) M mlbs) Sup'il ‘intendent’ s‘gécretary (Confidential)

- g/ ém,;—%

Mark Koontz, Direct6r ofMaane Facilities, Operations and Transportation
(Clc jfied Management)

» %ﬂz\/d&q‘
Patr1c1a Kowalski, Chief Business Officjal (Classified Management)

Jeremy Meyers, Superintetz{dent, BOMUSD

62



TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
THE BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND THE
District Mental Health Therapist
January 29, 2018

1. The District shall make the following changes to the Mental Health Therapist’s
salary schedule:

a) Effective July 1, 2017, Master’s Degree stipend will increase from $500 to
$1,000 and Doctoral Degree stipend will increase from $1,000 to $1,500.

2. All Mental Health Therapists, in paid status as of July 1, 2017, shall receive a.5%
off-schedule payment for regular annual salary earned in 2016-2017.

3. All Mental Health Therapists, in paid status as of January 8, 2018, shall receive a
1% on-schedule salary increase retroactive to July 1, 2017.

4. All Mental Health Therapists who will be employed as of July 1, 2018, shall
receive a 1% on-schedule salary increase beginning July 1, 2018.
DATED: January 29, 2018

SIGNED:

Nrar e Pl A TR, L)

Jennifer Dwight-Fro‘ét, Mental Health Therapist

et/

Jeremy Meyers, Superin L!é(ndent, BOMUSD

63



TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
THE BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND THE
BLACK OAK MINE ADMINISTRATORS
January 29, 2018

1. The District shall make the following changes to the administrator’s salary
schedule:

a) Effective July 1, 2017, Master’s Degree stipend will increase from $500 to
$1,000 and Doctoral Degree stipend will increase from $1,000 to $1,500.

2. All administrators, in paid status as of July 1, 2017, shall receive a .5% off-
schedule payment for regular annual salary earned in 2016-2017.

3. All administrators, in paid status as of January 8, 2018, shall receive a 1% on-
schedule salary increase retroactive to July 1, 2017.

4. All administrators will be employed as of July 1, 2018, shall receive a 1% on-
schedule salary increase beginning July 1, 2018.

DATED: January 29, 2018

SIGNED:

Coms et

Carrie Arnetf, A SSIStZChrector of K-6 Education

A / )ﬂ,f/&/ é

@» Weyt/s,mlth Dlrector of K-6 Education

¢

Ron Morris, Assistant Director of 7-12 Education

WM Conliehadn

Michelle Cortichiato, District Psychologist

e

“Sally Dyck, d}h%f‘ter School Director

W**ZQ/’;{ B %/

Jeremy Meyél/s, Superintendent, BOMUSD

64



DISCLOSURE OF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT
In Accordance with AB1200 (Statutes of 1991, Chapter 1213); G.C. 3547.5; CCR, Title V, Section 15449

The proposed agreement is a 3 year agreement that covers the period beginning 7/01/2016 and ending 06/30/2019, and will be acted upon by
the Governing Board at its meeting on February 08, 2018. The General Fund is impacted as follows. Impact on other funds is addressed in

Bargaining Unit Group
(Please use separate disclosure for each group)
Certificated
Classified
Confidential/Management/Administration
Other

the narrative.

Check one

Costof 1% *

11,015 |$11,328 in 16-17

*includes salary and refated benelits, e.g. STRS, PERS, Workers Compensation, Unemployment

A. Proposed Change in Compensation

. Fiscal Impact of Proposed Agreement %
Compensation ar YearZ | Veard |
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 FY - FY - FY -
FY - 1718 |FY - 1819 FY - 19-20 4748 18.19 19.20
lary Schedule - r
i [SalarySchsdle,increass|Recreass) 10,660 11,449 0.97%| 1.04%
2 Step and Column - Increase (Decrease) due to
movement plus any changes due to settlement 20,882 17,884 1.90%| 1.62%
3 Other Compensation
(complete description below) 6,192 0.56%
Statutory Benefits - Increase (Decrease) in STRS,
4 |PERS,FICA,WC,Ul,Medicare, etc. (may be included in costs above or
shown separately
5 Health/Welfare Benefits - Increase (Decrease)
B[ Total.Compensation 37,734 29,333 - 3.43%|  2.66%
7 | Total Number of Represented Employees 1 1
8 Total Compensation Average Cost per Employee -
Increase {Decrease) 3,430 2,667 -
Other Compensation - Increase (Decrease)
(Stipends, Bonuses, etc.) Provide Description below:
Group members employed as of July 1, 2017 will receive an off-schedule payment of 5% on 2016-17 regular salary. Ina
addition, administrative members employed as of July 1, 2017 will receive an increase of the Masters Stipend from $500 to
$1,000 and the Doctoral Degree Stripend from $1,000 to $1,500.

9 Were any additional steps, columns, or ranges

added to the schedules?

YES

If yes, please explain:

10 Does this bargaining group have a negotiated

cap for Health and Welfare benefits
if yes, please indicate the cap amount.

65

NO



Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 2 of 7

A

Proposed change in compensation. Provide a brief narrative of the proposed change in
compensation, including percentage change(s), effective date(s), and comments and
explanations as necessary

In addition to the Other Compensation described on page one, all group members employed as of January 8,
2018 will receive a 1% on schedule salary increase retroactive to July 1, 2017. All group members employed as
of July 1, 2018 will receive a 1% on-going increase to the salary schedule.

Proposed negotiated changes in non-compensation items (e.g. class size adjustments,
staff development days, teacher prep time, etc.)

N/A

What are the specific impacts on instructional and support programs to accommodate
the settlement? Include the impact of non-negotiated changes such as staff reductions and
program reductions/eliminations.

The district is reviewing all areas of district operations for efficiencies and reductions.

What contingency language is included in the proposed agreement? include specific
areas identified for reopeners, applicable fiscal years, and specific contingency language.

N/A

Identify other major provisions that do not directly affect the district's costs, such as
binding arbitrations, grievance procedures, etc.

N/A

66



Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 3 of 7

F.  Will this agreement create, or increase an operating deficit in the current or
subsequent year(s)? An operating deficit is defined to exist when a fund's
expenditures and other financing uses exceed its revenues and other financing
sources in a given year. If yes, explain the amounts and justification for doing so.

The off-schedule payment is funded with budgetary savings from 2016-17 and in the district reserve.
The on-going funding increases the operating deficit in which BOMUSD is actively analyzing areas for
reduction.

G. Source of funding for proposed agreement.

Current year:
Genera! fund

How will ongoing cost of the proposed agreement be funded in future years?

BOMUSD is currently discussing various restructure ideas and reductions for declining enroliment as
well as recognizing changing facts in the California Budget. Additionally, attorney/consulting costs that
have been budgeted can be reduced since the need for fact-finding has been diverted

If multi-year agreement, what is the source of funding, including assumptions used,
to fund these obligations in future years? (Remember to include compounding

effects in meeting obligations).
The compounding affect is accounted in the MYP including updates in projected LCFF funding from
the Governor's proposal

For multi-year agreements, please provide a multi-year financial projection
covering the term of the agreement. Inciude all assumptions used in the projections
enroliment growth, COLA, deficits, etc.

H. Describe the financial impact on other funds affected by the proposed settiement -

consider Cafeteria, Adult Education, Deferred Maintenance
N/A

67



Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement

G.
1.

3.

Impact of Proposed Agreement on Current Year Unrestricted Reserves

State Reserve Standard
I

a. Total expenditures, transfers out, and uses (including cost of $12,427,708
proposal

b. State Standard Minimum EUR Percentage for this district 4%
c. State Standard Minimum EUR amount for this district 497,108

(grealer of line 1-c or $50,000 for districts w/less than 1,001 ADA)

Budgeted Unrestricted reserve (after impact of Proposed Agreement

a. General Fund budgeted Unrestricted EUR 601,829
b. General Fund budgeted Unrestricted Unappropriated amount

c. Special Reserve Fund budgeted EUR -
d. Special Reserve Fund budgeted Unappropriated amount -

e. Total District budgeted Unrestricted reserves $ 601,829

Do Unrestricted reserves meet the state minimum standard amount?
Yes [ ] No

68




Page 5 of 7
Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement

IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

In accordance with E.C. 42142

2017-18
(Col. 1) (Col. 2)

Latest Board- Revisions (Col. 4)
approved budget Necessary as a Total impact on
before settlement | result of proposed (Col. 3) budget (col.
(as of ) 1st Interim settlement Other Revisions 1+2+3

REVENUES

Revenue Limit Sources (8010-8099) 9,424,891 $ 9,424,891
Remaining Revenues (8100-8799) 2,343,104 11,518 | § 2,354,622
TOTAL REVENUES| 11,767,995 - 11,518 | § 11,779,513

EXPENDITURES
1000 Certificated Salaries 4,236,237 6,835 69,171 | $ 4,312,243
2000 Classified Salaries 2,294,771 7,131 10,156 | $ 2,312,058
3000 Employee Benefits 2,855,988 2,886 3,548 $ 2,862,422
4000 Books and Supplies - 722,259 24,233 | $ 746,492
5000 Services and Operating Expenses 1,310,499 (69,666)| $ 1,240,833
6000 Capital Outlay 198,655 (23,526)| $ 175,129
7000 Other (plus future decreases TBD) 366,625 277 | $ 366,902
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 11,985,034 16,852 14,193 | $ 12,016,079
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT), -217,039 (16,852) (2,675)| 3 (236,566)
Other Sources and Transfers In 4,605 3 4,605
Other Uses and Transfers Out 37,331 $ 37,331

CURRENT YEAR INCREASE|

(DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE -249,765 (16,852) (2,675)| $ (269,292)
BEGINNING BALANCE] 2,013,923 $ 2,013,923
ENDING BALANCE 1,764,158 3 1,744,631

69



Page 6 of 7
Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement

IMPACT OF PROPOSED AGREEMENT ON CURRENT YEAR OPERATING BUDGET

In accordance with E.C. 42142

2018/19 2019/20
(Col. 2)
Revisions
Necessary as a (Col. 4)

result of proposed (Col. 3) Total impact on (Col. 3) Total impact on

settlement Other Revisions | budget (col. 1+2+3 || Other Revisions | budget (col. 1+2+3
REVENUES

Revenue Limit Sources (8010-8099) 247,620 | $ 9,672,511 | $ 38,493 | § 9,711,004
Remaining Revenues (8100-8799) (275,827)| $ 2,078,795 || $ (259,425)| § 1,819,370
TOTAL REVENUES) - (28,207) $ 11,751,306 $ 11,530,374

EXPENDITURES $ -
1000 Certificated Salaries 4,149 38,919 ( § 4,355311 [ $ 188,894 | § 4,544,205
2000 Classified Salaries 5,071 32,048 | § 2,349,177 || § 71542 [ § 2,420,719
3000 Employee Benefits 2,229 148,169 | § 3,012,820 § 148,330 | § 3,161,150
4000 Books and Supplies (159,643)| § 586,849 || $ (13,018)| § 573,831
5000 Services and Operating Expenses (396)| § 1,240,437 || § 69,451 | § 1,309,888
6000 Capital Outlay (107,718)| $ 67,413 $ (67,412)| & 1
7000 Other (plus future decreases TBD) 57,635 | & 424,537 |[ (47,959)| § 376,578
TOTAL EXPENDITURES] 11,449 9,016 | § 12,036,544 || $ 349,828 | § 12,386,372
OPERATING SURPLUS (DEFICIT) (11,449) (37,223)| § (285,238)[| % (349,828)| $ (855,998)
Other Sources and Transfers In § 4,605 $ 4,605
Other Uses and Transfers Qut 6,902 | 44233 3 4,000 | $ 48,233

CURRENT YEAR INCREASE

(DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCE (11,449) (44,125)| $ (324,866) $ (899,626)
BEGINNING BALANCE $ 1,744,631 $ 1,419,765
ENDING BALANCE! $ 1,419,765 $ 520,139

70



Disclosure of Collective Bargaining Agreement Page 7 of 6

Certification No. 1

In accordance with the requirements of Government Code Section 3547.5, the Superintendent and Chief
Business Officer of Black Oak Mine Unified School District, hereby certify that the District can meet the costs
incurred under the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the District and the
Administrative/Management/Confidential group, during the term of the agreement from July 1, 2016 to June
30, 2019.

The budget revisions necessary to meet the costs of the agreement in each year of its term will be submitted
upon completion of the 2nd interim report.

District Superintendent Date
(Signature)

Chief Business Official Date
(Signature)

Certification #2

The information provided in this document summarizes the financial implications of the proposed agreement
and is submitted to the Governing Board for public disclosure of the major provisions of the agreement (as
provided in the Public Disclosure of Proposed Bargaining Agreement in accordance with the requirements of
AB 1200 and Government Code Section 3547.5.

District Superintendent (or Designee) Date
(Signature)

Contact Person Phone

After public disclosure of the major provisions contained in this summary, the Governing Board at its
meeting on February 8, 2018, took action to approved the proposed Agreement with the
Administrative/Management/Confidential group.

President (or Clerk), Governing Board Date
(Signature)

71




72



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 18.4

MEETING DATE:

FROM:

RECOMMENDATION:

BACKGROUND:

Resolution #2018-04 Reduction in Certificated Staff Due to
Reduction or Elimination of Particular Kinds of Service for
the 2018-19 School Year

February 8, 2018

Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
Shelly King, Personnel Services Coordinator

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees adopt Board

Resolution #2018-04, Reduction in Certificated Staff Due to
Reduction or Elimination of Particular Kinds of Service for
the 2018-19 School Year.

According to the provisions of the Education Code,
certificated staff must be notified prior to March 15t if their
services will not be required in the following year. Dueto a
reduction or discontinuance of particular kinds of services,
the certificated services listed on Resolution #2018-04 will
be reduced.

kmck/ board/2-8-18/ Certificated Reduction

73



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Resolution 2018-04

Reduction in Certificated Staff Due
To Reduction or Elimination of Particular
Kinds of Service

WHEREAS, Sections 44949 and 44955 of the California Education Code require action by the
governing board if the services of certificated staff are to be reduced or eliminated in order to permit the layoff
of certificated employees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board that:

1. The services set forth in Exhibit “A” shall be reduced or eliminated at the close of the 2017/2018
school year for the 2018/2019 school year.

2. The Board has considered anticipated certificated employee attrition (resignation, retirements,
non-reelections, temporary teacher releases, etc.). Nevertheless, it is still necessary to terminate
certificated full-time equivalent positions as referenced in Exhibit “A.”

3. It will be necessary to retain the services of certificated employees, regardless of seniority, who
possess qualifications and competencies needed in the projected educational program for the
2017/2018 school year which are not possessed by more senior employees thereby subject to
layoff.

4. The Superintendent, or designee, is authorized and directed to send notice(s) of
recommendation of non-reemployment pursuant to Sections 44949 and 44955 of the California
Education Code to any employee whose services shall be terminated by virtue of this
Resolution.

THIS RESOLUTION was passed and adopted by the Board at a regular meeting held on the 8th day
of February, 2018 by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:
Signed and approved by me after its passage.

i”resident - Board of Trusteés
ATTEST:

Clerk - Board of Trustees

00025751 3
74



000257513

EXHIBIT “A”

TO RESOLUTION 2018-04

PARTICULAR KINDS OF SERVICES (PKS) TO BE REDUCED

OR ELIMINATED
AT CLOSE OF 2017/2018 SCHOOL YEAR
Service Grade Level | Full Time Equivalent

Special Education K-12 75
Multiple Subject K-6 4.0
Math 7-12 1.0
Industrial and Technology Education 7-12 1.0
District Total 6.75

75




76



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 185 El Dorado County School Board Association Annual Awards

Dinner
MEETING DATE: February 8, 2018
FROM: Mr. Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider nominating

candidates in one or all of the four categories for the El Dorado
County School Board Association Awards Dinner.

BACKGROUND: The El Dorado County School Board Association will be holding
their annual dinner meeting and awards program on March 5, 2018.
Retired and Outgoing Board Members will be recognized for their
service. Additional nominees will be recognized in five categories.

The five categories are:

e Category 1 - Educational Statesmanship - promoting public
education in the community, region, etc.

e Category 2 - Leader in Boardsmanship - notable
process/behavior in discussion/ deliberation/ team
building/ collaboration - Contribution to board generally.
Contribute to Board/Superintendent/ Administration
relationship.

o Category 3 - Outstanding Community Member or Volunteer
OR Outstanding Community Organization OR Outstanding
Corporate Organization - Has made a notable contribution
to education.

e Category 4 - Dolores Garcia Memorial Spirit of
Boardsmanship - Provides community leadership on
educational issues and advocates on behalf of students and
public education at the local, regional and possibly state
level. Participates in professional development and commits
the time and energy necessary to be an informed and
effective leader.

o Category 5 - Lifetime Achievement Award- Automatically
given to outgoing/ retiring board members to recognize their
contributions during their career as a trustee (must have
served at least eight years on school or county office board.

km/board/2-8-18/EDCSBA Nominations

77



78



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 18.6  E-Rate Bid Proposal

MEETING DATE: February 8, 2018
FROM: Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider approving

the E-Rate Proposal from AMS.net.

BACKGROUND: The fiscal year 2018-19 contract between AMS.net and Black Oak
Mine Unified School District covers E-Rate category 2 components
for expanding broadband internal connections. The contract is up
to $150,196.78 with a 10% contingency fee. The contract is
contingent on E-Rate funding which is a partial source of
funding. The rest of funding will be from multiple sources such
as facility funds, deferred maintenance funds, and the general
fund.

km\ board\ 2-8-18\ E-Rate Proposal

79



CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

At
THIS, AGREEMENT (*Agreement”), made and entered into this 5,"11 day of j'ﬂ Mftfﬁ %
20_&2, by and between the Black Oak Mine Unified School District, a school district organized

EtlAtl existing under the laws of the State of California (“District”) , and
_]“"7 IV | | \1¢..  (“Contractor”) for:

RFP NO. 1-2018
CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, the District and Contractor
agree as follows:

|
TERM
The term of this Agreement shall commence upon execution of this Agreement by all parties and
shall continue through acceptance by the District of all required work and final payment to
Contractor. All indemnification provisions contained in the Agreement shall survive beyond the
expiration of the Agreement. The term of this Agreement shall be from 4/1/2018 through
9/30/2019. Upon mutual agreement by both parties (i.e., Contractor and the District), this
Agreement may be renewed for additional one-year terms not to exceed a total of five (5) years.

I
SCOPE OF WORK
The Contractor shall perform the Contract within the time stipulated as herein defined, and shall
provide all labor, materials, tools, utility services, and transportation to complete in a
workmanlike manner all of the work required in connection with the Contract herein mentioned,
in strict compliance with the Contract Documents as specified in Section III below.

I
NON-FUNDING OF E-RATE
The District’s obligation to procure services provided under this Contract are contingent upon
District receiving a fully funded E-Rate Funding Commitment Decision Letter (FCDL) for each
year of eligible services.

1V

NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS
Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, if for any fiscal year of this Agreement the
Governing Board for any reason fails to appropriate or allocate funds for future payments under
this Agreement, the District will not be obligated to pay the balance of funds remaining unpaid
beyond the fiscal period for which funds have been appropriated and allocated.

AV
TERMINATION
This Agreement may be terminated by the District upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to

16

80



Contractor. The District’s right to terminate under this paragraph shall be in addition to any
other rights reserved to District under this Agreement.

VI
CONTRACT PRICE
The District shall pay to the Contractor $_"| [=5) ~ ([AMOUNT SPELLED OUT]) as

full consideration for the faithful performance of the Contract, subject to any additions or
deductions as provided in the contract documents, and including any applicable sales, use or
other taxes or costs as specified in the executed pricing sheet(s) incorporated herein by reference.

VI
COMPONENT PARTS OF THE CONTRACT
The Contract entered into by this Agreement consists of the following Contract Documents
(referred to herein as the “Contract” or the “Contract Documents”), all of which are component
parts of the Contract as if herein set out in full or attached hereto:

Notice of Request for Proposal

Introduction

Information for Proposers

Contents of Proposals

Submittal Requirements

Evaluation and Selection Process

Agreement

Proposal Form

Renewal Clause

e Payment Terms

e Non-Collusion Affidavit

o Workers’ Compensation Certificate

o Affirmative Action Program

e Certification Regarding Disbarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
e Drug-Free Workplace Certification

e Fingerprinting/Criminal Background Investigation Certification
e Designated Subcontractors List

e Proposal Quotation Sheet

All of the Contract Documents are intended to be complementary. Work required by one of the
Contract Documents and not by others shall be done as if required by all. This Agreement shall
supersede any prior agreement of the parties.

VIII
THE DISTRICT’S INSPECTOR
All items shall be subject to the inspection of the District. Inspection of the items shall not relieve
the Contractor from any obligation to fulfill this Agreement. Defective items shall be made good

81



by the Contractor, and unsuitable items may be rejected, notwithstanding that such defective work
and materials have been previously overlooked by the District and accepted. If any item shall be
found defective at any time before final acceptance of the complete delivery, the Contractor shall
remedy such defect in a manner satisfactory to the District.

IX
PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW
Each and every provision of law and clause required to be inserted in this contract shall be
deemed to be inserted herein, and this Contract shall be read and enforced as though it were
included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted or is not
inserted correctly, then upon application of either Party the Contract shall be physically amended
to make such insertion or correction.

X

HOLD HARMLESS
Contractor agrees to defend and hold harmless the District, its Governing Board, officers,
directors, agents, employees, and independent contractors, individually and collectively, from
and against all costs, expenses, losses, claims, demands, suits actions, payments, judgments
(including legal and attorney fees), or other liabilities of any nature, arising from death, personal
or bodily injuries, property damage or otherwise, however caused, brought or recovered against
any of the above-named persons that (a) occur in connection with the performance of the
professional services set forth herein by the Contractor or any of its officers, employees, agents,
or subcontractors; or (b) arise from any act, omission, or breach by the Contractor or any of its
officers, employees, agents, or subcontractors in connection with the professional services set
forth herein. The foregoing shall include, without limitation, all claims, demands, actions, liens,
judgments, damages, losses, costs or expenses, or other liabilities incurred by reason of:

1) Liability for (a) death or bodily injury to persons; (b) damage or injury to, loss
(including theft), or loss of use of, any property; (c) any failure or alleged failure to comply with
any provision of law or the contract documents; or (d) any other loss, damage or expense,
sustained by any person, firm or corporation or in connection with the work or services called for
in the Contract Documents,

2) Any bodily injury to or death of persons or damage to property caused by any act,
omission or breach of the Contractor or any person, firm or corporation employed by the
Contractor, either directly or by independent contract, including all damages or injury to, loss
(including thefl), or loss of use of, any property, sustained by any person, firm or corporation,
including the District, arising out of or in any way connected with the work or services covered
by the contract documents, whether said injury or damage occurs either on or off the District’s
property.

3) Any dispute between the Contractor and any Subcontractor, supplier, surety or
other party, including, without limitation, any failure or alleged failure of the Contractor (or any
person hired or employed directly or indirectly by the Contractor) to pay any subcontractor or
material suppliers of any tier or any other person employed in connection with the work or
services, and/or filing of any stop payment notice or mechanic’s lien claims.

4) Breach of any warranty, express or implied.

18
82



5) Failure of the Contractor or its subcontractors to comply with any applicable
governmental law, rule, regulation, or other requirement.

6) Products installed in or used in connection with the work or services performed.

7 This obligation to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless includes any actions by
third parties under Labor Code section 2810.

X1
ATTORNEYS’ FEES
If suit is brought by either party to this Agreement to enforce any of its terms (including all
component parts of the contract documents), and the District prevails in such suit, the Contractor
shall pay all litigation expenses incurred by the District, including attorneys’ fees, court costs,
expert witness fees and investigation expenses.

X1l
INSURANCE PERMITS AND LICENSES REQUIRED OF THE CONTRACTOR
The Contractor shall maintain insurance adequate to protect it from claims under workers’
compensation acts, and from claims for damages for personal injury, including death and damage
to property, which may arise from operations under the Contract in amounts specified in the
Information for Proposers. The Contractor shall be required to file with the District certificates of
such insurance. The failure to furnish such evidence may be considered default by the Contractor.

The Contractor and all of its employees or agents shall secure and maintain in force such licenses
and permits as are required by law in connection with the furnishing of materials, articles, or
services covered under this Contract. All operations and materials shall be in accordance with the
law.

X1
ENTIRE AGREEMENT
The Contract, which consists of all of the documents listed in Section VII above, constitutes the
entire agreement between the parties and supersedes any prior or contemporaneous agreement
between the parties, oral or written.

X1V
EXECUTION OF OTHER DOCUMENTS
The parties to this Agreement shall cooperate fully in the execution of any and all other
documents and in the completion of any additional actions that may be necessary or appropriate
to give full force and effect to the terms and intent of the Contract.

XV

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts such that the signatures may appear on separate
signature pages. A copy, or an original, with all signatures appended together, shall be deemed a
fully executed Agreement.

XV1

19
83



BINDING EFFECT
Contractor, by execution of this Agreement, acknowledges that Contractor has read this
Agreement and the other contract documents, understands them, and agrees to be bound by their
terms and conditions. The Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the
Contractor and the District and their respective successors and assigns.

XVvil

SEVERABILITY/GOVERNING LAW/CHOICE OF FORUM
If any provision of the contract shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other proVision hereof.
The contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Any action or proceeding
seeking any relief under or with respect to this Agreement shall be brought solely in the Superior
Court of the State of California for the County of El Dorado, subject to transfer of venue under
applicable State law.

' XVII
AMENDMENTS
The terms of the contract shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in
any manner whatsoever except by written agreement signed by the parties and approved or
ratified by the Governing Board.

XIX
AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE
The individual(s) executing this Agreement on behalf of the Contractor is/are duly and fully
authorized to execute this Agreement on behalf of Contractor and to bind the Contractor to each
and every term, condition and covenant of the Contract Documents.

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW]

20
84



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the District, by order of its Governing Board, has caused this
instrument to be duly subscribed by the Secretary of said Board, and the Contractor has caused
this instrument to be duly subscribed and executed, all on the date first hereinbefore set forth.

CONTRACTOR: DISTRICT:

[Contractor Name] Black Oak Mine Unified School District

Awe NET

\MW By: T?‘/W

[Nante of Person Signing] Jeremy Meydfs

Title: \hc,ﬁ /Wf 47}60“}/ Title: Superintendent
Date: /) (:W\ Ul m/l’\) Zﬂ\ 1‘(7/0} % Date: Z-/'L//é’

Governing Board Date:
Item No.:

(Corporate Seal)

Contractors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractor’s State License
Board. Any questions concerning a contractor may be referred to the registrar of the board whose
address is:

Contractor’s State License Board

9821 Business Park Drive

Satramento, CA 95827

(916) 255-3900; http://www2.cscb.ca.gov/

(Business and Professions Code § 7030)

85



© 099¢-€68-008
HNF—.%E N.b?:??.p

Em&.m cu..:. EOE mc_umhnw,wu

GG eEE'0vS

FeZ9BL'0STS 7227689728 | 9 €L6'9018 s|ejo
SLOLEES | 6L°G6% Zev98'1$ ¥9'95€'1$ 31vd-NON Buiqeg - Buipjing uonenodsues} 6v222000-O
62°82L'c$ h 16°28$ ZE98°1$ 90°181°1$ 31VY-NON BUljqed - 8530 souBUSIUB 8¥/22000-D
0ZZLEES _ 6.'19% YRS AAS S9v/8$ 21VY3-NON Builge) - 920 10msIa L¥122000-D
 PROrLES 9/°¢8$ Z€v98'L$ 9/Z61°1$ ALVY-NON Buiqed - spiig eeid Brug  9v/22000-D
lziov'es | zzses Zev98'1$ £2'105$ Buiiqen - uyBiH spiNd §$/22000-D
. mm.«mm_uvw.rm ZrL00°L$ & 01'629'22% ££'268°€1$ Bujiqed - [00UIS BPISYUON  ¥#/22000-D
8¥IpE'6zs * 9ez8vs$ 66'821'22$ €1°0€2°9$ " Buiqed - Apmig wuspusdspuj/ooyos umolebioss  €4/2Z000-0
yoveeiies ___ 81°162$ 6L€vsZL$ 19°6£5'€$ | Buiqe) - 10049S JBPBYD 19AY UBDUBWY 2r1220000
_ |
| 68'6VLLS w 98°'62$ 88°Z62'1$ ShLevs Buiqed - [ooyog ABjusWwa|3 38810 I8N0, L$/22000D
15°888'6¢3 u_ 88'v9.$ 92'98%'82$ | €V LEY'0LS Buigeo - jooyos UBIH BUBIS USPIOD 071220000
eloL m |- togeq SPIEd uonduosaq _ #OI0ND SNV,

mem.:w—‘.._ Junoody

810Z ‘6¢ Aenuer

9198 # Josloid
9198 - Buljged paimonas - seys aidiyn - 1Z 91eY-3J 101SIQ [00YSS payiun sully YeQ 3oe|g

uoljewsojuj 30afoid

9819-5¥Z (526)
Jpuswe@ssajfeql
sss|Aeg paler

T e

e

JoUISIQ [00YOS Paiun SUIN YO Moelg - Alewiwng 1s09 Jo8(old

rPIAOId umignios ASojouyray

1IN m§<

86



CONTINGENCY FEE AS A STANDARD PRACTICE

PROJECT: 0385-11C.1 District Wide Network Electronics Upgrades for Black Oak Mine
Unified School District
OWNER: Black Oak Mine Unified School District

The “Owner” establishes a classification “Contingency Fee”; for adds/moves/changes as affected
by the construction/funding schedule, changes to campus environment. This classification
applies to all construction work. This classification is not based on permanent physical elements
of construction. Rather, the classification items are cost components common to construction,
project, and program estimates.

Contingency will not be allowed for increases to labor cost, taxes, surcharges, shipping and
handling.

Bidder agrees that the contingency will be used for adds, moves and changes requested by the
owner during the construction process for eligible services only. If the owner does not request
adds, moves or changes the contingency will be given back to the E-rate program.

Please fill in one of the following:
YES A, ms.MET (company name) does include contingency as a standard

business practice as defined above.
If YES please provide the “Contingency Fee” amount in percentage.

Equalto | % (not to exceed 15%) of the base bid amount $

Dollars ($ ). Contingency Amount $
Dollars ($ ).
—OR-
NO ____{company name) does not include contingency as a

standard business practice as defined above.

| hereby certify under penalty ui the |101|u|y hws of the State of California that li) [oregoing is
tlmi apd correct. Executed at | \jﬁ V1Y 1VE s . California. on 7?‘]
20

Firm Name HS- MS. VE T -

By

San-Qi\/LA h\T\w, T -
Printed Name . I’“ \‘{[ﬂ(”h (i [

Tltle\l\( ) l_“ *L

28
87



88



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 19.1

MEETING DATE:

FROM:

RECOMMENDATION:

BACKGROUND:

km/board/2-8-18/Day of the Teacher

National Teacher Appreciation Day
February 8, 2018

Mr. Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees adopt Board Resolution
#2018-01 National Teacher Appreciation Day.

The Day of the Teacher is an annual observance during the month of
May. The special day on which to recognize teachers was established
several years ago at the State level and the District has traditionally
observed the event at the District level by adopting a resolution and
at the site level with various activities and/ or recognitions. This year
the observance is May 8, 2018.

89



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD RESOLUTION 2018-01

CALIFORNIA DAY OF THE TEACHER

WHEREAS, the children of California represent the future of our great state; and

WHEREAS, paramount to their success in tomorrow's world is their effective
personal and intellectual development; and

WHEREAS, the educators of the Golden State provide the vital lessons that enable
our youth to mature and reach their fullest potential; and

WHEREAS, the guidance, support and inspiration that teachers provide to students
is invaluable and contributes tremendously to the well-being of our great state; and

WHEREAS, it is fitting that all Californians pay tribute to our teachers and their
lasting achievements on behalf of our children and the future of the Golden State;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees and the District's
administrators do hereby proclaim May 8, 2018, as "California Day of the Teacher"
in the Black Oak Mine Unified School District and encourage all citizens to join in
this very special observance and show their sincere appreciation for our teachers.

Dated this 8t day of February, 2018, by order of the Board of Trustees of the Black
Oak Mine Unified School District upon a vote of ayes and noes.

Bill Drescher, President
Board of Trustees

Darcy Knight, Clerk
Board of Trustees

km/board/Resolution 2018-1 Day of the Teacher 90



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 19.2

MEETING DATE:

FROM:

RECOMMENDATION:

BACKGROUND:

km/board/2-8-18/Day of the Nurse

National Day of the School Nurse
February 8, 2018

Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees adopt Board Resolution
#2018-01 National Day of the School Nurse.

The National Day of the School Nurse is an annual observance during
the month of May. The special day on which to recognize nurses was
established several years ago at the State level and the District has
traditionally observed the event at the District level by adopting a
resolution and at the site level with various activities and/or
recognitions. This year the observance is May 8, 2018.

91



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD RESOLUTION 2018-02

NATIONAL SCHOOL NURSE DAY

WHEREAS, the children of California represent the future of our great state by
investing in them today, we are securing our business, community and state leaders
of tomorrow; and

WHEREAS, the physical, mental and emotional well-being of our children is
paramount to their growth and development; and

WHEREAS, California’s school nurses are dedicated health care professionals who
work in collaboration with families, schools and communities to develop and
promote comprehensive health care programs for our youth; and

WHEREAS, in addition to providing for students” immediate health needs, school
nurses continually promote healthy lifestyles and provide health and safety
education to students and staff; and

WHEREAS, Californians are encouraged to promote the good health of our students
and recognize school nurses for their contributions to the health of our children;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees and the District's
administrators do hereby proclaim May 8, 2018, as "National School Nurse Day" in
the Black Oak Mine Unified School District and encourage all citizens to join in this
very special observance and show their sincere appreciation for nurse.

Dated this 8" day of February, 2018, by order of the Board of Trustees of the Black
Oak Mine Unified School District upon a vote of ayes and noes.

Bill Drescher, President
Board of Trustees

Darcy Knight, Clerk
Board of Trustees

km/board/Resolution 2018-2 National Day of School Nurses
92



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDAITEM: 193 Classified School Employees Week

MEETING DATE: February 8, 2018
FROM: Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees adopt Board Resolution

#2018-03 Classified School Employees Week.

BACKGROUND: Classified School Employees Week is an annual observance during
the month of May. The week in which to recognize classified school
employees was established many years ago at the State level and the
District has traditionally observed the event at the District level by
adopting a resolution and at the site level with various activities
and/ or recognitions. This year the observance is May 14-18, 2018.

km/board/2-8-18/Classified Employees Week

93



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD RESOLUTION 2018-03

CLASSIFIED SCHOOL EMPLOYEES WEEK

WHEREAS, Classified School Employees provide valuable services to Black Oak Mine
Unified School District schools; and

WHEREAS, Classified School Employees contribute to the establishment and promotion of
a positive instructional environment; and

WHEREAS, Classified School Employees play a vital role in providing for the welfare and
safety of Black Oak Mine Unified School District students; and

WHEREAS, the Black Oak Mine Unified School District Board of Trustees recognizes the
contribution of Classified School Employees to quality education in our community;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Black Oak Mine Unified School District
joins all other public agencies in California in designating May 14-18, 2018, as Classified
School Employees Week.

Dated this 8t day of February, 2018, by order of the Board of Trustees of the Black Oak Mine
Unified School District upon a vote of ayes and noes.

Bill Drescher, President
Board of Trustees

Darcy Knight, Clerk
Board of Trustees

km/board/Resolution 2018-3 Classified Employee Week

94



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM: 194 2017-18 Consolidated Application (ConApp)
MEETING DATE: February 8, 2018

FROM: Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent
Tricia Kowalski, Chief Business Officer

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Board of Trustees consider taking action
to approve the updated 2017-18 Consolidated Application
(ConApp).

BACKGROUND: The Consolidated Application (ConApp) was updated to include
Title IV Funding.

km/board/2-8-18/ConAp

95



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) : i Status: Cerli?e;i
aved by: Tricia Kowalski

Date: 5/30/2017 12:33 PM

2017-18 Certification of Assurances

Submission of Certification of Assurances is required every fiscal year. A complete list of legal and program
assurances for the fiscal year can be found at http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/aa/co/cal7asstoc.asp.

CDE Program Contact:
Joy Paull, jpaull@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Consolidated Application Certification Statement

I hereby certify that all of the applicable state and federal rules and regulations will be observed by this applicant;
that to the best of my knowledge the information contained in this application is correct and complete; and |
agree to have the use of these funds reviewed and/or audited according to the standards and criteria set forth in
the California Department of Education Categorical Program Monitoring (CPM) Manual. Legal assurances for all
programs are accepted as the basic legal condition for the operation of selected projects and programs and
copies of assurances are retained on site. | certify that we accept all assurances except for those for which a
waliver has been obtained or requested. A copy of all waivers or requests is on file. | certify that actual ink
signatures for this form are on file.

Authorized Representative's Full Name Patricia Kowalski
Authorized Representative's Signature

Authorized Representative's Title Chief Business Official
Authorized Representative Signature Date 05/30/2017

*t*warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both state and federal law. Page 1 of 12
96



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) Soved b S_It_a.tqszrserlitreg
aved by: Tricia Kowalski

Date: 5/30/2017 12:33 PM

2017-18 Protected Prayer Certification

ESSA Section 8524 specifies federal requirements regarding constitutionally protected prayer in public
elementary and secondary schools. This form meets the annual requirement and provides written certification.

CDE Program Contact:
Franco Rozic, Title | Monitoring and Support Office, frozic@cde.ca.gov , 916-319-0269

Protected Prayer Certification Statement

The LEA hereby assures and certifies to the California State Board of Education that the LEA has no policy that
prevents, or otherwise denies participation in, constitutionally protected prayer in public schools as set forth in the
"Guidance on Constitutionally Protected Prayer in Public Elementary and Secondary Schools."

The LEA hereby assures that this page has been printed and contains an ink signature. The ink signature copy
shall be made available to the California Department of Education upon request or as part of an audit, a
compliance review, or a complaint investigation.

The authorized representative agrees to the above statement Yes
Authorized Representative's Full Name Jeremy Meyers
Authorized Representative Title Superintendent
Authorized Representative Signature Date 06/05/2017
Comment

If the LEA is not able to certify at this time an explanation must be

provided in the Comment field. (Maximum 500 characters)

***warningt**
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both state and federal law. Page 2 of 12
97




California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) . S_It_a‘tqs:}?ertitreg
aved by: Tricia Kowalski

Date: 1/24/2018 10:43 AM

2017-18 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Education Data Office, ConApp@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

Local Governing Board Approval

The LEA is required to review and receive approval of their Application for Funding selections with their local
governing board.

Date of approval by local governing board 06/05/2017

District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) Review

Per Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Section 11308, if your district has more than 50 English learmners
the district must establish a District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) and involve them in the
application for funding for programs that serve English learners.

DELAC representative's full name
DELAC review date

Meeting minutes web address

Please enter the Web address of DELAC review meeting minutes (format

hitp://SomeWebsiteName.xxx). If a Web address is not available, the LEA

must keep the minutes on file which indicates that the application is

approved by the committee.

DELAC comment DELAC not required @ BOMUSD

due to our low number of EL
students

If an advisory committee refused to review the application, or if DELAC
review is not applicable, enter a comment. (Maximum 500 characters)

Title IV, Part A Addendum

To apply for Title IV, Part A categorical funds for the fiscal year select “Yes." Only eligible LEAs will receive Title
IV, Part A funds.

Title IV, Part A (Student Support) Yes

ESSA Sec. 1112(b)
SACS 4127

Date of material change approval by local governing board 02/08/2018

Participation is considered a material change per Section 64000, as such,
local board approval is required.

Application for Categorical Programs

To receive specific categorical funds for a school year the LEA must apply for the fund by selecting Yes. Only the
categorical funds the LEA is eligible to receive are displayed.

Title I, Part A (Basic Grant) Yes

**twarning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both state and federal law. Page 3 of 12

98




California Department of Education
Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000)

2017-18 Application for Funding

CDE Program Contact:
Education Data Office, ConApp@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0297

ESSA Sec. 1111 et seq.
SACS 3010

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified
Saved by: Tricia Kowalski
Date: 1/24/2018 10:43 AM

Title Il, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction)

ESEA Sec. 2104
SACS 4035

Yes

Title lll, Part A Immigrant

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4201

No

Title Ill, Part A English Learner

ESEA Sec. 3102
SACS 4203

Yes

**Warning**”"

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:1/24/2018

99

Page 4 of 12



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) S:gu:s: I,:jlone
ate: None

2017-18 Federal Transferability

Federal transferability of funds is governed by Title V in ESSA Section 5102. An LEA may transfer Title II, Part A
and Title IV, Part A program funds to other allowable programs. This transferability is not the same as Title V,
Subpart 1 Rural Education Achievement Program Flexibility (REAP-Flex) governed by ESEA Section 5211.
Funds transfefred under REAP-Flex are not to be included on this form.

CDE Program Contact:

Juan J. Sanchez, Educator Excellence Office (Title I1), jsanchez@cde.ca.qov, 916-319-0452
Tom Herman, Coordinated School Health & Safety (Title IV), THerman@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0914

Title I, Part A Transfers

2017-18 Title Il, Part A entitlement $32,219
Transferred to Title |, Part A
Transferred to Title I, Part C
Transferred to Title |, Part D
Transferred to Title Iil, Part A English Learner

Transferred to Title I, Part A Immigrant
Transferred to Title IV, Part A

Transferred to Title V, Part B, Subpart 1 Small, Rural School Achievement
Grant

Transferred to Title V, Part B, Subpart 2 Rural and Low-Income Grant

Total amount of Title I, Part A funds transferred out $0
2017-18 Title I, Part A entitliement after transfers out $32,219
Title IV, Part A Transfers

2017-18 Title IV, Part A entitiement $10,000

Transferred to Title |, Part A
Transferred to Title |, Part C
Transferred to Title I, Part D
Transferred to Title II, Part A
Transferred to Title Ill, Part A English Learner

Transferred to Title Ill, Part A Immigrant
Transferred to Title V, Part B, Subpart 1 Small, Rural School Achievement

Grant

Transferred to Title V, Part B, Subpart 2 Rural and Low-Income Grant

Total amount of Title IV, Part A funds transferred out $0
2017-18 Title IV, Part A entitlement after transfers out $10,000

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both stgte and federal law. Page 5 of 12
100



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) . S_Il’a_tu.s:}?eniirelg
aved by: Tricia Kowalski

Date: 1/24/2018 10:43 AM

2017-18 Title I, Part A LEA Allocation

The purpose of this data collection is to calculate the full Title I, Part A allocation available to the LEA.

CDE Program Contact:
Sylvia Hanna, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, shanna@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0948

Nonprofit Private School Equitable Services Percentage Calculation

Total participating nonprofit private school low income students

Total participating attendance area low income students 0

Percent of nonprofit private school low income students for equitable 0.00%
service calculations

Title I, Part A LEA Allocations

2017-18 Title I, Part A entitlement $149,521
Transferred-in amount $0
Title I, Part A entittement after transfers $149,521
Note:

In order for the 2016-17 allowable carryover amount to be pre-populated,
the 2016-17 Title |, Part A Carryover data collection should be completed
and saved before beginning data entry on this data collection.

2016-17 Allowable Carryover $0
(Allowable values are the 12 month 2016-17 carryover amount or,

whichever is less either the 15 month 2016-17 camryover amount or 15% of
the 2016-17 entitlement plus transferred-in amount)

Repayment of funds $0
2017-18 Total allocation $149,521
Nonprofit private school equitable services proportional share amount $0
Total allocation after nonprofit private school equitable services $149,521
proportional share amount

Indirect cost reservation $7,607
Administrative reservation $11,896
2017-18 Title I, Part A adjusted allocation $130,018

Indirect Cost and Administration Calculation Tool

To help determine allowable indirect cost and administrative reservations,
based on the LEA's approved indirect cost rate, as defined on the Indirect
Cost Rates Web page at http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/ic/, below are
recommended values.

2017-18 Approved indirect cost rate 5.36%

Maximum allowable indirect cost reservation $7,607
$14,822

Recommended administration reservation

***Warning*™*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both st?te and federal law. Page 6 of 12
101



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) Ao S_It_a‘tqs:}?ertiil’lelg
aved by: Tricia Kowalski

Date: 1/24/2018 10:43 AM
2017-18 Title |, Part A Reservations
To report LEA required and authorized reservations before distributing funds to schools.

CDE Program Contact:

Lana Zhou, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, Izhou@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0956
Rina DeRose, Title | Policy and Program Guidance Office, RDerose@cde.ca.qgov, 916-323-0472

Required Reservations

Parent and Family Engagement $0
(1% of the entitlement if greater than $500,000.)

School parent and family engagement $0
LEA parent and family engagement $0
Direct or indirect services to homeless children, regardless of their school $5,000
of attendance

Local neglected institutions No

Does the LEA have local institutions for neglected children?

Local neglected institutions reservation

Local delinquent institutions No
Does the LEA have local institutions for delinquent children?

Local delinquent institutions reservation

Public school Choice transportation $0
(Only applies to students previously transferred under NCLB.)

Authorized Reservations

lOther authorized activities

Reservation Summary

Title I, Part A adjusted allocation $130,018
Total required reservations $5,000
Total authorized reservations $0
Allocation after reservations $125,018
School parent and family engagement set-aside $0
Amount available for Title |, Part A school allocations $125,018

***Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both state and federal law. Page 7 of 12
102



California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) Status: Certified
Saved by: Tricia Kowalski
Date: 1/24/2018 10:43 AM

2017-18 Title I, Part A LEA Allocations

The purpose of this data collection is to calculate the total allocation amount available to the LEA for Title Ii, Part
A Preparing, Training, and Recruiting High-Quality Teachers, Principals, and Other School Leaders.

CDE Program Contact:

Melissa Flatt, Educator Excellence Office, mflatt@cde.ca.gov, 916-324-5689
Juan J. Sanchez, Educator Excellence Office (Title Il), jsanchez@cde.ca.gov, 91 6-319-0452

2017-18 Title Il, Part A entitlement $32,219
Transferred-in amount $0
Total funds transferred out of Title 1I, Part A $0
Total entitlement after transfers $32,219
Repayment of funds

Repayment comment

Provide an explanation of why repayment dollars were added back to the

allocation

2017-18 Allocation $32,219
Administrative and indirect costs $4,202
2017-18 Title 11, Part A adjusted allocation $28,017

“**Warning™*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both state and federal law. Page 8 of 12
103



California Department of Education
Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000)

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified
Saved by: Tricia Kowalski
Date: 12/14/2017 11:58 AM

2017-18 Title lll, Part A English Learner Student Program Subgrant Budget

The purpose of this report is to provide a proposed budget for 2017-18 English learner (EL) student program
subgrant funds only per the Title llI, Part A, English Learner Students Program requirements (ESSA, Title Ill,

Part A, Sections 3114, 3115, & 3116).

CDE Program Contact:

Patty Stevens, Language Policy and Leadership Office, pstevens@cde.ca.gov , 916-323-5838
Geoffrey Ndirangu, Language Policy and Leadership Office, gndirang@cde.ca.gov, 916-323-5831

Estimated Entitlement Calculation

Estimated English learner per student allocation $93.37
Estimated English learner student count 10
Estimated English learner entitlement amount $934

Note: Estimated entitiement amount is less than $10,000

The estimated entitlement amount does not meet the minimum program eligibility criteria for direct funding status
and requires further action. To receive instructions regarding the consortium application process, please contact

Geoffrey Ndirangu by phone at 916-323-5831 or by e-mail at gndirang@cde.ca.gov.

Budget
Professional development activities $887
Program and other authorized activities $0
English Proficiency and Academic Achievement $0
Parent, family, and community engagement $0
Direct administration costs $0
{Amount cannot exceed 2% of the estimated entitiement)
Indirect costs $47
(Amount should be calculated using the LEA's approved indirect cost rate)
Total allocation budget $934
***Warning***

The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)

and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a
Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both stgte and federal law. Page 9 of 12

104




California Department of Education Consolidated Application
Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) Status: Certified

Saved by: Tricia Kowalski
Date: 1/24/2018 10:52 AM

2017-18 Title IV, Part A LEA Allocations

The purpose of this data collection is to calculate the total allocation amount available to the LEA for Title IV, Part
A and to report reservations.

CDE Program Contact:
Tom Herman, Coordinated School Health & Safety (Title IV), THerman@cde.ca.gov, 916-319-0914

2017-18 Title IV, Part A entitlement $10,000
Transferred-in amount $0
Total funds transferred out of Title IV, Part A $0
2017-18 Title IV, Part A allocation $10,000
Indirect cost reservation $196
Administrative reservation $0
2017-18 Title IV, Part A adjusted allocation $9,804

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both st;ate and federal law. Page 10 of 12
105




California Department of Education
Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000)

CDE Program Contact:

Julie Brucklacher, Financial Accountability and Info Srv Office, jbruckla@cde.ca.gav, 916-327-0858

Consolidated Application

Status: Certified

Saved by: Tricia Kowalski
Date: 1/24/2018 10:43 AM

2017-18 Consolidation of Administrative Funds

A request by the LEA to consolidate administrative funds for specific programs.

SACS Code 4124

Title I, Part A (Basic) Yes
SACS Code 3010
Title |, Part C (Migrant Education) No
SACS Code 3060
Title I, Part D (Delinquent) No
SACS Code 3025
Title 11, Part A (Supporting Effective Instruction) Yes
SACS Code 4035
Title I, Part A (Immigrant Students) No
SACS Code 4201
Title lll, Part A (English Learner Students) - 2% maximum No
SACS Code 4203
Title IV, Part A (Student Support) No
SACS Code 4127
Title IV, Part B (21st Century Community Learning Centers) Yes

***Warning*™*
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

violation of both state and federal law.

Report Date:1/24/2018

106

Page 11 of 12



California Department of Education Consolidated Application

Black Oak Mine Unified (09 73783 0000000) SR STta_tqs:IE)eniflielg
aved by: Tricia Kowalski

Date: 5/30/2017 12:33 PM

2017-18 Substitute System for Time Accounting

This certification may be used by auditors and by CDE oversight personnel when conducting audits and sub-
recipient monitoring of the substitute time-and-effort system. Approval is automatically granted when the LEA
submits and certifies this data collection.

CDE Program Contact:
Julie Brucklacher, Financial Accountability and Info Srv Office, jbruckla@cde.ca.gov, 916-327-0858

The LEA certifies that only eligible employees will participate in the substitute system and that the system used
to document employee work schedules includes sufficient controls to ensure that the schedules are accurate.
Additional information on the predetermined schedule substitute system of time accounting can be found at
htp://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/coltimeaccounting2013.asp. Detailed information on documenting salaries and
wages, including both substitute systems of time accounting, are described in Procedure 905 of the California
School Accounting Manual posted on the Web at http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sal.

2017-18 Request for authorization No

LEA certifies that the following is a full disclosure of any known
deficiencies with the substitute system or known challenges with
implementing the system

(Maximum 500 characters)

**Warning***
The data in this report may be protected by the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA)
and other applicable data privacy laws. Unauthorized access or sharing of this data may constitute a

Report Date:1/24/2018 violation of both stgte and federal law. Page 12 of 12
107



108



BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AGENDAITEM: 195

MEETING DATE:

FROM:

RECOMMENDATION:

BACKGROUND:

km/2-8-18/CSBA Policy Updates

CSBA Board Policy Updates/Revisions

January 8, 2018

Jeremy Meyers, Superintendent

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees review the options given

under BP 1325 Advertising and Promotion and BP 3100 Budget and
consider approving the following CSBA updated/revised Board Policies.

BP 0420.4 Charter School Authorization, BP 1325 Advertising and
Promotion, BP 3100 Budget, BP 4119.21, 4219.21, and 4319.21 Profession
Standards, BP 4200 Classified Personnel.

109



Classified Personnel BP 4200(a)
CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

The Board of Trustees recognizes that classified personnel provide essential services that
support and enhance the district's educational program. The Board of Trustees shall fill
each of its classified positions with qualified persons, consistent with position
requirements.

(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District)
(¢f- 4211 - Recruitment and Selection)

The Board shall classify all employees and positions not requiring certification
qualifications as the classified service, except for those employees and positions
specifically exempt from classified service. (Education Code 45103)

Individuals who possess certification qualifications shall not be prohibited from being
employed in a classified position. (Education Code 45104)

(¢f- 4211 - Recruitment and Selection)
(¢f. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)

Each classified position shall have a designated title and regular minimum number of
assigned hours per day, days per week and months per year.

Classified employees shall be assigned by their immediate supervisors with the approval
of the Superintendent or designee. They shall be required to perform those duties
prescribed by the Board for the position the employee holds, in accordance with
applicable job descriptions and collective bargaining agreements.

(cf- 4141/424] - Collective Bargaining Agreement)

Each classified employee shall be held accountable for duties assigned to him/her and
shall undergo regular performance evaluations in accordance with collective bargaining
agreements.

(¢f- 4215 - Evaluation/Supervision)
Substitute and Short-Term Employees

The district may employ a substitute employee to replace a classified employee who is
temporarily absent from duty. (Education Code 45103)

If the district is in the process of hiring a permanent employee to fill a classified position,
the Board may fill the vacancy with one or more substitute employees for no more than
60 calendar days, unless the applicable collective bargaining agreement provides for a
different period of time. (Education Code 45103)

The district may employ a short-term employee to perform a service for the district

110



BP 4200(b)
CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

when that service or similar services will not be extended or needed on a continuing
basis. Before employing a short-term employee, the Board, at a regularly scheduled
meeting, shall specify the service required to be performed by the employee and shall
certify the ending date of the service. The Board may shorten or extend the ending date,
but the date shall not be extended beyond 195 work days per year, including holidays,
sick leave, vacation, and other leaves of absence, irrespective of the number of hours
worked per day. (Education Code 45103)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
45100-45139 Employment of classified staff
45160-45169 Salaries and differential compensation
45190-45210 Resignation and leaves of absence
45220-45320 Merit system
49406 Examination for tuberculosis
51760-51769.5 Work experience education

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
California School Employees Association: http://www.csea.com

Policy BLACK OAK MINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: Georgetown, California

111



Community Relations BP 1325(a)
ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION

Community Relations

The Board of Trustees establishes this policy to ensure effective and consistent standards for
advertisements and promotions by non-school groups in school-sponsored publications, on district
and school web sites, social media, and on school facilities and grounds. Student speech shall be
regulated in accordance with BP/AR 5145.2 — Freedom of Speech/Expression.

(cf- 1113 — District and School Web Sites)

(cf- 1114 — District-Sponsored Social Media)

(cf- 1330 — Use of School Facilities)

(cf. 5145.2 — Freedom of Speech/Expression)

(cf- 6145.5 — Student Organizations and Equal Access)

OPTION 1: Nonpublic Forum

The Board believes that in order to maintain focus on academic achievement